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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in this Annual report describing the company's objectives, projections, 

estimates and expectations may be 'forward looking statements' within the meaning 

of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results might differ substantially or 

materially from those expressed or implied. Important developments that could affect 

the company's operations include a downtrend in the real estate sector, significant 

changes in political and economic environment in India or key financial markets 

abroad, tax laws, litigation, labour relations, exchange rate fluctuations, interest and 

other costs.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Nitesh Shetty 
Chairman & Managing Director

Mr. G N Bajpai
Independent Director

Mr. L S Vaidyanathan 
Executive Director

Mr. Darius Udwadia
Independent Director

Mr. Ashwini Kumar 
Executive Director & Chief Operating Officer

Mr. Rangaswamy Iyer
Independent Director

Mr. Mahesh Bhupathi
Non-Executive Director

Mr. James Brent
Independent Director

Mrs. Pushpalatha V Shetty
Director

Mr. Ashok Aram
Independent Director

Mr. M A Venkateshan
Chief Finance Officer

Mr. D Srinivasan  
Company Secretary & Chief Compliance Officer

STATUTORY AUDITORS

S R Batliboi & Associates, 
Chartered Accountants 
“UB City” Canberra Block
12th & 13th Floor, 
No. 24, Vittal Mallya Road
Bangalore – 560 001
Tel: +91 80 4027 5000
Fax: +91 80 2210 6000

INTERNAL AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu India Pvt. Ltd.
Deloitte Centre
Anchorage II
100/2 Richmond Road,
Bangalroe 560 025
Tel: +91 80 66276000
Fax: +91 80 66276013 

 EQUITY SHARES LISTED AT

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE)

REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER AGENTS

Karvy Computershare Private Limited 
Plot Nos. 17 to 2a4 Vittalrao Nagar, 
Madhapur, Hyderabad – 500 081
Telephone No. : 040 23420818 
Fax No.: 040 23421551 
Email: mailmanager@karvy.com

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Corporation Bank
HDFC Bank Limited
Bank of Baroda

SOLICITORS

Shetty & Hegde Associates 
Udwadia Udeshi & Argus Partners
Holla & Holla Advocates
J. Sagar Associates
Amarchand & Mangaladas & Suresh A. Shroof & Co.

REGISTERED OFFICE
Nitesh Timesquare,  7th Floor, No. 8 M G Road,  Bangalore 560 001

Tel: +91 80 4017 4000   Fax:+91 80 2555 0825
Website: www.niteshestates.com
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NOTICE is hereby given that the Eighth  Annual General Meeting of the members of Nitesh Estates Limited will be held on 
Wednesday 26th September, 2012 at  2.00 P.M. at Chowdiah Memorial Hall, G. D. Park Extension, Vyalikaval,  Bangalore – 560 003, 
to transact the following business:  

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2012 and the Profit and Loss Account for the year 
ended on that date and the Report’s of the Directors’ and the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Pushpalatha V Shetty, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for 
re-appointment.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ashok T Aram, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution as an Ordinary resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT  Mr. Ashwini Kumar, who was appointed as  an Additional Director under Section 260 of the Companies Act, 
1956 and who holds office up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company and in respect of whom 
notice under Section 257 of the Companies Act, 1956 has been received from a member signifying his intention to propose 
Mr. Ashwini Kumar  as a Candidate for the office of Director of the Company be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the 
Company.

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution as an Ordinary resolution:
 
 “RESOLVED THAT B. S. R & Co, Chartered Accountants, Bangalore, (Firm Registration No. 101248W), be and are hereby 

appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold the office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting 
till the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company in the place of S. R. Batliboi & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants (Firm Regn. 101049W) who retire at this Annual General Meeting, on a remuneration to be mutually agreed to 
between the Auditors and the Audit Committee.

                                                        
 By order of the Board 
  For Nitesh Estates Limited
Registered Office:
7th Floor, Nitesh Timesquare, 
No. 8, M G Road, Bangalore - 560001                                                                                                                                              

Place:  Bangalore  D. Srinivasan
Date:  August 7, 2012 Company Secretary

Notes:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO 
ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. PROXIES IN ORDER 
TO BE VALID MUST BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LATER THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE 
THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

2. The relevant Explanatory Statement as required under section 173 (2) is attached.

3. The Register of Members and the Register of Transfer will remain closed from Saturday the 22nd September 2012 to 
Wednesday the 26th September 2012 (both days inclusive).
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4. Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the prescribed information on Directors seeking appointment / re 
appointment at the Annual General Meeting is appended to this Notice.

5. Members are requested to advise any change in address to Karvy Computershare Private Limited, the Registrars and Share 
Transfer Agents of the Company at 17 to 24, Vithalrao Nagar, Madhapur, Hyderabad 500081, Tel: +91 40 23420818 (B).

6. Members are requested to bring their copy of the Annual Report to the Meeting. Additional copies will not be provided at 
the Meeting.

7. For the convenience of Members and for the proper conduct of the Meeting, entry to the place of Meeting will be regulated 
by an Attendance Slip, which is annexed to the Proxy Form, Members/Proxies attending the meeting are kindly requested 
to complete the enclosed Attendance Slip and affix their signature at the place provided thereon and hand it over at the 
entrance.

8. Members are requested to register their e-mail with their DP and Registrar Karvy Computershare Private Limited for 
despatch of Notice / Annual Report and support the Government’s Green Initiative.

Annexure to the Notice 
Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 173 (2) of the Companies Act, 1956

Item No. 4

Mr. Ashwini Kumar was co-opted as an Additional Director appointed as the Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer of 
the Company, by the Board of Directors,  with effect from April 19, 2012.  Pursuant to Sec 260 of the Companies Act, 1956 the 
appointment of Additional Director is valid upto the date of the immediate Annual General Meeting.  Notice has been received 
under section 257 of the Companies act, 1956 from a member signifying his intention to propose Mr. Ashwini Kumar as a Director 
of the Company the Board recommends the appointment of Mr. Ashwini Kumar as Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer 
of the Company.  Profile of Mr Ashiwni Kumar is appended at the end of the notice.

None of the Directors is interested in this resolution, except Mr. Ashwini Kumar, the appointee.

Item No. 5

S. R. Batliboi & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Regn. 101049W) were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company 
at the Seventh Annual General Meeting held on September 28, 2011 and they hold office till the  conclusion of this Annual General 
Meeting.   They have expressed their desire not to seek appointment, in view of their other commitments.
 
The Board of Directors  have  recommend the appointment of B. S. R & Co, Chartered Accountants, Bangalore, (Firm Registration 
No. 101248W) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till  the 
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting on a remuneration to be agreed between B. S. R & Co, Chartered Accountants, and 
the Audit Committee. 

None of the Director is interested in this resolution.

 By order of the Board 
  For Nitesh Estates Limited
Registered Office:
7th Floor, Nitesh Timesquare, 
No. 8, M G Road, Bangalore - 560001                                                                                                                                              

Place : Bangalore  D. Srinivasan
Date : August 7, 2012 Company Secretary
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Profile of directors being re-appointed as required under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered into with the Stock 
Exchanges

Particulars Mrs. Pushpalatha V Shetty

Qualifications B. Sc.,

 Date of Appointment February 20, 2004

Expertise in specific Functional areas   -

Directorships held

��� Grass Outdoor Media Private Limited 

��� Nisco Ventures Private Limited

��� Nitesh Media Private Limited

��� Lob Media Private Limited

��� Nitesh Healthcare Private Limited

��� Serve & Volley Signages Private Limited

��� Serve and Volley Outdoor Advertising Private Limited

	�� Nitesh Hospitals Private Limited

��� Nitesh Agrico Private Limited

���� Nitesh Airways Private Limited

���� Southern Hills Developers Private Limited

���� Nitesh Industries Private Limited

���� Nitesh Infrastructure Private Limited

���� Nitesh Indiranagar Retail Private Limited

���� Nitesh Warehousing Private Limited

���� Nitesh Mylapore Developers Private Limited

���� Nitesh Landholdings Private Limited

�	�� Nitesh Energy Private Limited

���� Nitstone Environnement Private Limited

���� Nitstone Wastemanagement Private Limited

���� Hampton Investments Private Limited

Membership of Committees Nil

No of shares held in the Company 5,000 Equity Shares

Particulars Mr. Ashok T Aram

Qualifications: PG in International Business and Comparative Culture

Date of Appointment September 24, 2009

Expertise in specific Functional areas -

Directorships held

��� Abraaj Capital Holdings Limited, UAE

��� Tyfone INC (USA)

��� Solition Technologies Private Limited, INDIA

Membership of Committees Nil

No of shares held in the Company Nil
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Particulars Mr.  Ashwini Kumar

Qualifications:
Mechanical Engineer from NIT, Rourkela (1981) and post graduate in Business 

Management from XLRI, Jamshedpur (1983)

Date of Appointment September 24, 2009

Expertise in specific Functional areas

Mr. Ashwini Kumar, aged 53 years joined the Company on 2nd November, 2009 

as the Chief Operating Officer and is responsible for the business operations 

of the Company. Prior to joining Nitesh Estates Limited, he was the Managing 

Director of Lineage Power India Pvt. Ltd. a leading US based MNC in the area 

of Power Electronics and responsible for their business in India and South 

East Asia. Prior to this he worked as Director with Tyco Electronics and Lucent 

Technologies and was responsible for their telecom power electronics business 

in India.

In all he has an experience of 29 years starting with functional roles, in sales, 

project management, manufacturing, performance improvement and 

culminating in business leadership roles. 

Directorships held

Nitesh Housing Developers Private Limited

Nitesh Indiranagar Retail Private Limited

Nitesh Urban Development Private Limited

Membership of Committees Nil

No of shares held in the Company 1,38,818  Equity Shares
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Your Directors present their Eighth Annual Report and the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2012.

FINANCIAL RESULTS:                 

Rupees in Lakhs

                    Particulars
STANDALONE CONSOLIDATED

     2011-12    2010-11          2011-12 2010-11
Income :
Income from operations 7903 9771 11622 12410

Other Income 12 1068 1359 1995

Total Income 7915 10839 12981 14405
Profit / (Loss) before depreciation (532) 355 676 1634

Less : Depreciation 181 66 184 66

Profit before tax (713) 289 492 1568

Less : Income tax (257) (87) 247 349

Profit / (Loss) after tax (456) 376 245 1219
Less: Minority interest & share of loss in Associate - - 214 127

Net Profit / (Loss) (456) 376 31 1092

DIVIDEND: 

The Directors could not  recommend  any dividend in view of the loss.

OPERATIONS:

Stand Alone:

During the year under review the Company achieved a turnover of Rs. 7903 Lakh as against Rs. 9771 Lakh in the previous year and 
other income of Rs.12 Lakh as compared to Rs.1068 Lakh in the previous year.  The operations had resulted in a loss of Rs. 456 Lakh 
as against a profit of Rs. 376 Lakh in the last year.

Consolidated:

In compliance with the applicable Clauses of the Listing Agreement  with the Stock Exchanges, the Company has prepared 
Consolidated  Financial Statements as per the Accounting Standard on Consolidated  Financial Statements (AS 21) issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements along with the Auditors Report have 
been annexed to this Annual Report.

The total consolidated revenue for the year ended 31st March 2012 amounted to Rs. 12981 Lakh including other income of Rs. 1359 
Lakh, as compared to Rs. 14405 Lakh in the previous year.  The Company earned a profit after tax of Rs. 245 Lakhs (Previous year 
Rs. 1219 Lakhs) and a Net profit of Rs. 31 Lakh for the year (Previous year Rs. 1092 Lakhs), after adjusting the minority interest in 
subsidiary companies and share of loss from associate company amounting to Rs. 214 Lakh (Previous year Rs. 127 Lakhs).

The financial figures have been regrouped  in line with the new Schedule VI disclosure requirements.
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SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES: 

A. SUBSIDIARIES :

 Nitesh Housing Developers Private Limited:  

 This company is a 89.9% subsidiary of the Company.  At present the subsidiary is executing 4 residential Projects. 
 The financial highlights are:

          Figures Rs. In thousands

Particulars          2011-12 2010-11

Paid up Capital 50,000 50,000

Share Application Money 828,388 906,436

Reserves & Surplus 201,240 85,421

Secured Loans 24,854 634,033

Unsecured Loans 100 100

Income From Property Development 310,745 55,540

Sale of Villa Plots 41,514 193,324

Other Income 133,603 92,682

Profit Before Tax 181,129 130,909

Profit After Tax 115,819 87,312

Pursuant to the approval accorded by the Shareholder’s at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on March 20, 2012 the 
Authorised Capital of the Subsidiary Company was increased to Rs. 10 Cr divided into 50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 
and 50,00,000 Preference Shares  of Rs. 10/- each.
            
Nitesh Indiranagar Retail Private Limited:

This company is a 100% wholly owned subsidiary of Nitesh Estates Limited.  The financial highlights are:
                              Figures Rs. In thousands

Particulars          2011-12 2010-11

Paid up Capital 132,480 11,600

Share Application money - 1,369,622

Reserves & Surplus 1,170,246 103,464

Unsecured Loans 195 12,238

Pursuant to the approval accorded by the Shareholder’s at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on March 19, 2012 the 
Authorised Capital of the Subsidiary Company was increased to  Rs. 15 Cr. 1,20,88,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each were 
allotted at a premium of Rs. 90/- per share aggregating to Rs. 120.88 crores to the Holding Company.  The pre-operative 
expenses have been charged to Profit & Loss Account. The Loss for the year stood at Rs 2,11,73,979.

Kakanad Enterprises Private Limited (formerly known as Nitesh Kochi Projects and Developers Private Limited):

The Company has not commenced its commercial operations.  The pre-operative expenses have been charged to the Profit and 
Loss Account.  The loss for the year stood at Rs. 137,751/-.

Effective, March 12, 2012 the Registered Office of the Company was shifted to No. CC 49/2796, 2nd Floor, North Square, 
Paramara Road, Kochi - 682018, Kerala, INDIA.
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During the year under review, pursuant to the approval accorded by the Shareholder’s at the Extraordinary General Meeting held 
on March 27, 2012 the name of the Company was changed to Kakanad Enterprises Private Limited and the same was approved by 
the Registrar of Companies on  April 4, 2012.

This Company is a 100% subsidiary of Nites Estates Limited.  

Nitesh Urban Development Private Limited (formerly known as Nitesh Boat Club Private Limited):

FINANCIAL RESULTS:

The performance of the company for the financial year ended March 31, 2012 is given hereunder
                                                                                                                                  Figures Rs. In thousands

                    Particulars 2011-12 2010-11

Income :

Income from operations: - -

Other Income 145 -

Total Income 145 -

Loss before depreciation 29,692 3,066

Depreciation - -

Loss before tax 29,692 3,066

Provision for income tax - -

Provision for deferred tax (8,899) -

Loss after tax 20,792 3,066

The Company during the current financial year executed a Joint Development Agreement on August 18, 2011 with the land 
owners for the development of the property bearing 1 Acres 14.56 Guntas situated at Kaikondarahalli Village, Varthur Hobli, 
Marathalli, Bangalore East Taluk for the construction and development of residential project “Nitesh Cape Cod”. 

The Company has obtained all the approval from the relevant authorities for commencement of the project and the final plan 
approval was obtained on March 19, 2012.  This Project is expected to yield total revenue of Rs. 300 Cr. 

The Company became a 100% subsidiary of Nitesh Estates Limited consequent to the acquisition of shares from the existing 
shareholder with effect form December 31 2011.

Pursuant to the approval accorded by the Shareholder’s at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on January 18, 2012 the 
Company had acquired 5490 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each of Courtyard Constructions Private Limited, Mumbai at a total 
consideration of Rs. 8.02 Cr from an  existing share holder.

Pursuant to the approval accorded by the Shareholder’s at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on March 19, 2012 the 
Authorised Capital of the Company was increased to Rs. 10 Cr. 65,72,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each were allotted at a 
premium of Rs. 26/- per share aggregating Rs. 26.65 Crores to the Holding Company.
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Nitesh Property Management Private Limited:

This company is a 100% wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.  It has entered into Maintenance Contracts with owners of 
completed apartments developed by the Company, with effect from   April 1, 2011. 
The performance of the company for the financial year ended March 31, 2012 is given hereunder:

                                                                                                                          Figures Rs. In thousands

                    Particulars 2011-12

Income :

Income from operations:
Building Maintenance income 29,936

Other operating Income 2,064

Other Income 263

Total Income 32,263

Profit / Loss before depreciation 885

Depreciation -

Profit / Loss before tax 885

Provision for income tax 300

Provision for deferred tax (9)

Profit for the year 594

B. CONSOLIDATED  ACCOUNTS:

 The audited consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2012, consolidated Profit and Loss account for the year ended on that 
date, Cash flow together with the Notes and Reports of Auditors thereon form part of this Annual Report. 

 Pursuant to the general permission accorded by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, vide their Circular No. 2/2011 dated February 8, 
2011 the Company is not attaching the Annual Reports of the Subsidiary Companies. However, any shareholder who wishes 
to have information on the Subsidiary Companies or a copy of the Annual report of the subsidiary companies may write to the 
Company requesting for the same. 

C. MATERIAL NON-LISTED INDIAN SUBSIDIARY:

 Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, Nitesh Housing Developers Private Limited and Nitesh Indiranagar Retail 
Private Limited will be treated as a material non-listed subsidiary for the financial year 2011-12.  Necessary steps are being 
taken as required under the Listing agreement.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge 
and belief, confirm that :-

1. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper 
explanation relating to material departures;

2. appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and such judgments and estimates have been 
made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 
2012 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date;

3. proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud 
and other irregularities; and

4. the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.
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BOARD’S RESPONSE TO AUDIT OBSERVATION: 

1. Paragraph 5 of the Auditors Report:

During the Year the Company recognized Deferred Tax Asset on the basis of future taxable income expected out of certain 
ongoing & proposed projects.   In respect of the ongoing projects, the Company has already received necessary approvals 
from the concerned statutory authorities for commencement of construction of the project and the Company has started sale 
bookings in respect of the said ongoing projects. The Company has also executed  Agreement of Sale with the buyers for the 
aforesaid projects.  The Management is reasonably confident of meeting the virtual certainty of the project execution and 
profits to be earned thereon. Based on the above facts, the Company has recognized the Deferred Tax Asset.

2. Paragraph 6 of the Auditors Report:

The advances amounting to Rs. 828,236,000 are towards certain real estate projects. Out of the said advances Rs. 450,000,000 
is towards joint development  of a property wherein requisite documentation has been executed and registration has been 
completed. In respect of other advances, acquisition of land and obtaining approval for development of projects is under 
progress. The management is confident of completing acquisition and obtaining approval for development of projects.

3. Clause IV  of the Annexure to the Auditors Report:

In order to strengthen the internal control systems for timely documentation and also for effective management of business,   
the Company has implemented SAP system.  Further the Company has appointed Deloitte Touch Tomashu Private Limited as 
Internal Auditors of the Company towards ensuring an effective internal control system.

4. Clause V(b) of the Annexure to the Auditors Report:

The observation by the Auditors is self explanatory.

5. Clause XVI of the Annexure to the Auditors Report:

The transaction is pertaining to financial year 2010-11 in respect of which there was an outstanding amount of Rs. 75 million 
at the end of the current financial year. As explained in the previous year, the project, for which the term loan was availed, was 
experiencing some delay.  Hence, the Company deployed the amount temporarily for other purposes.

INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 217 OF THE COMPANIES AT, 1956:

Information required under Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, read with Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 
1975, as amended, is given in Annexure I and forms part of this Report.

Information in terms of Section 217(1)(e) of the Companies Act, 1956, read with Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report 
of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988, is given in Annexure II and forms part of this Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT:

The Company has taken adequate steps to ensure that all mandatory provisions of Corporate Governance as prescribed by the 
Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges have been complied with.

A Report on Corporate Governance forming part of the Directors’ Report, along with a certificate from the Statutory Auditors 
confirming compliance, is annexed as Annexure IV and forms part of this Report.

The Management Discussion & Analysis Report is attached as Annexure III and forms part of this Report.
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DIRECTORS:

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Pushpalatha V Shetty  
and  Mr. Ashok Aram Directors, will retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves 
for reappointment.

Mr. Ashwini Kumar was co-opted as an Additional Director and appointed as Whole-time Director designated as Executive Director 
& Chief Operating Officer of the Company. He will seek re-appointment under Sec 257 of the Companies Act, 1956 for which the 
Company has received a notice from a member.  Necessary resolution will be placed before the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Your Board of Directors recommend their appointment.

AUDITORS:

The Company’s Auditors, S.R. Batliboi & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 101049W)  hold office upto 
the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting. Statutory Auditors have expressed their desire not to seek reappointment at the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

While we continue to concentrate on our core business objective of building world-class projects, we are also aware of our 
responsibilities towards the society we operate in. We conduct our business in a fair and ethical manner and try to be change 
agents through meaningful contributions and partnerships. 

Believing in the adage – ‘charity begins at home’ and taking cognizance of the fact that our business involves urbanization, we 
are extremely sensitive to our surroundings and ecology. We try to minimize our carbon footprint by erecting energy efficient 
buildings and investing in adequate green cover in all our project sites to supplement the ground cover.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your Directors are pleased to place on record their sincere appreciation of the valuable assistance and co-operation extended 
to the company by its Customers, Bankers, Financial Institutions, State and Central Government authorities, Service Providers, 
Contractors and the Shareholders for their valued support to the Company’s operations.  

Your Directors also place on record their appreciation of the significant contribution made, and support extended, by the employees 
of the Company at all levels during the year.

                                                                                   For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
                                                                                   

                                                                                   
Place : Mumbai NITESH SHETTY                           
Date   :  May 25, 2012 Chairman & Managing Director
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Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Expenditure

I. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

a) Energy conservation measure taken:

The company has taken energy savings measures, viz.,

Installation of solar water heaters to reduce the EB power consumption 

The buildings are ergonomically designed to consume less power, and to include more natural light and ventilation.

The flats are positioned north-south directions, so that the direct sun light entering to the flats are reduced, thereby 
reducing the power consumption. 

Use of materials in construction which are certified by IGBC (India Green Building Council)

Implementing rain water harvesting system in the projects.  By this, the ground water table is recharged and rain water 
is utilized for domestic purposes, thereby reducing the dependency on municipal water supply. 

b) Additional investment and proposal, 

 The company as a matter of policy has regular programme for investments in energy saving devices.  Investments are 
being done for the procurement of lifts which are more efficient and based on variable drive.

c) Impact of measure taken 

 The impact and the energy conservation by the system adopted in (a) and (b) above will be known in the long run.  These 
cannot be quantified.

II. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

a. Company works on a mechanized process to reduce cost and increase the efficiency of the operations. 

 I. ERP system using SAP implemented successfully and the company is benefitting from the same. 

 II. By appointing oversees architects, consultants technology upgradation has been brought to the projects. 

 III. Use of light weight blocks for construction of walls in the projects – The new technology available from Germany has 
been adopted in the projects.  This has considerably saved the construction cost and time. 

 IV. Certifying the projects with leed ratings, so that the IGBC guidelines are met and the buildings are more efficient. 

 V. The Sewage Treatment Plant (STP) – latest technology has been adopted, which is more efficient and energy savings. 

b. Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts: 

 The benefits can be listed as follows:

i. The functions and efficiency has improved with more transparency in the system.

ii. The designs brought into our projects have been praised by the customer. 

iii. Savings in construction cost and time.

iv. The new technology in STP saves space and energy. 

c. No remarkable technology has been imported.
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III. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

a. Specific area in which R & D carried out by the Company:  

 The company has introduced more robust quality checking norms for the building materials and workmanship, so that 
the quality product is delivered.   Safety norms of the Company has been rolled out.   The quality and safety work shop are 
conducted regularly at all the project sites, so that the end user is aware of the standards.    

b. Benefits derived as a result of the above R & D 

 The benefits are in the long run by delivering the quality product to the customer. 

c. Future Plan of Action 

 The continuous improvement in the above fields, identifying new products, identifying new technology in the construction 
industry, attending seminars, training the staff, etc., 

d. Expenditure on R & D

 It forms part of the project cost and cannot be quantified separately. 

IV. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

 The details of foreign exchange inflow and outflow during the year are as follows: 
     
Expenditure in foreign currency (on accrual basis)

    Amount in Rupee

Particulars Year ended 
31-Mar-12

Year ended 
31-Mar-11

Share issue expenses - 20,936,606

Architect and other fees 92,106,149 -

Professional and consultancy charges - 1,198,100

Travelling and conveyance - 492,171

There is no foreign exchange earnings / inflow during the year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
                                                                                   

                                                                                   
Place : Mumbai NITESH SHETTY                           
Date   :  May 25, 2012 Chairman & Managing Director
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The overall GDP growth of the Indian economy during Apr-Mar 2012 slowed significantly to 6.5% from 8.4% in the corresponding 
period of the previous year. The trend is negative as the decline continued from Q3 to Q4 of 2011-12 when GDP growth reduced 
from 6.1% to 5.3%. The Index of Industrial Production (IIP) and the Purchasing Managers’ Index (PMI) suggest continued slowdown 
in Q4 of 2011-12. Supply bottlenecks in the areas of infrastructure, energy, minerals and labour are the primary reasons behind this 
decline in growth momentum. The high fiscal deficit and uncertain commodity prices in global markets especially of crude oil are 
also major concerns for the Indian economy.

The headline Wholesale Price Index (WPI) was above 9% during Apr-Nov 2011 but moderated to 6.9% by March 2012. Food prices 
have again gone up after a seasonal decline. The prices of non-food manufactured products appear to be moderating since 
corporate performance numbers indicate that their pricing power has reduced. The full impact of energy prices – oil, electricity 
and coal will be seen after the costs are passed on to the consumers. The sharp depreciation of the Indian Rupee against the US 
Dollar will further exacerbate the situation. 

The consumer confidence survey conducted by RBI showed that the households’ perception of current economic conditions and 
future expectations have moderated. Greater proportion of the respondent are worried about employment prospects and have 
indicated consistent fall in spending levels in the next year.

RBI reduced the policy rates by 50 basis points in the month of April but given the current economic environment one may not see 
a significant decline in the interest rates.  

Considering the economic status, the demand for real estate may remain at moderate levels in the coming quarters. 

Real Estate Market

The real estate sector in India assumed greater prominence with the liberalisation of the economy. The consequent increase in 
business opportunities and labour migration resulted in increase in the demand for commercial and housing space. However, the 
sector is highly influenced by economic cycles. Due to high inflation combined with high interest rates in the backdrop of slow 
economic growth, the Indian real estate sector witnessed a downturn in transaction activity, reduced launches of new projects and 
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stagnant property prices in 2011. Inflow of foreign direct investments (FDI) also reduced in last fiscal. According to the Department 
of Industrial Policy & Promotion (DIPP), FDI in the housing and real estate sector during Apr-Mar 2012 was $731 million as against 
$1,227 million in 2010-11.

The Bangalore Real Estate Market however showed a trend that was different from the other cities in the country. It continues 
to see steady demand of 8,000 to 9,000 units each quarter. New supply has reduced quarter over quarter and consequently the 
inventory of unsold units is coming down. The Bangalore market has seen significant increase in property prices and rentals. 
According to National Housing Bank (NHB), the residential property prices in Bangalore saw a significant increase in 2011. The 
housing price index (RESIDEX) in Bangalore increased to 100 in Oct-Dec 2011 as compared to 88 in Jan-Mar 2011. The weighted 
average price of absorbed units has gone up by almost 15% in Q4 2011 as compared to the levels of Q4 2010. 

The commercial real estate in Bangalore also remained positive with more than 9 million sq ft getting absorbed during the year 
which represents an increase of around 17% over the previous year.

The Company

Founded in the year 2004, the year 2010-11 was a very significant one in the history of the Company. The Company after a successful 
initial public offering was listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange and the National Stock Exchange in May, 2010. In its early years 
the Company had been able to gain strong brand reputation owing to the high quality of projects it had delivered. The Company 
partnered with global investors like OchZiff, Citi Properties (now Apollo Global Management) and HDFC, and marquee names such 
as Ritz Carlton and ITC. It had built a strong pipeline of projects and the raising of funds through the public offering enabled the 
Company to commence the projects and embark on a journey of rapid growth.

The current pipeline of projects includes 9 residential projects which are currently under construction and have a total revenue 
potential of Rs. 1,240 Crores. There are 5 residential projects which are currently in the design and approval stage and these will be 
launched during the current financial year. The revenue potential of these projects is Rs. 1,360 Crores. 

Apart from the residential projects, the company is also developing the first Ritz Carlton hotel in India, located in Bangalore for 
which the project value is Rs. 675 Crores. Further, the Company is also developing a mall in Indiranagar, Bangalore for which the 
project cost is Rs. 500 Crores.

The Company strongly believes in differentiating itself in terms of governance practices and has an eminent board of 10 members 
and 5 among them are independent directors. The executive team consists of highly experienced professionals.

Business Strategy

Joint Development Model

The Company consciously avoids building a “land bank” and develops real estate jointly with the owners of the land. The agreement 
with the owners of land entitles the Company irrevocably to plan the project, obtain approvals and sanctions from the appropriate 
authorities, carry out construction of the project and the right over a share of the developed property. The Company is entitled to 
market the project and name the project. A power of attorney is executed by the owners in favour of the Company which entitles 
it to enter into agreements of sale or lease, the right to transfer the Company’s share of the developed area. The Company is also 
entitled to the custody of title deeds of the property in order to raise finance against mortgage of the property. The owners of the 
land are entitled to a share of the developed area and payment of monies as deposit, a part of which may not be refundable. The 
owner indemnifies the Company from any claims against the title of the property.

This model allows the Company rights over land with low capital exposure and mitigates the risk related with the title of land and 
the risk associated with land value owing to a shift in consumer preferences. This is an asset light model and allows higher internal 
rate of return.

Resource Deployment and Delivery Model 

The Company deploys its own resources primarily in managing relations and transactions with land owners, sales and marketing, 
coordination of design and architecture, planning and monitoring of projects, contracts and procurement, and quality management. 
The Company partners with external architectural and design firms based on the type of project and the market segment that is 
catered to. It has partnered with leading international firms like KPF, WATG, Callison as also local firms like RK Associates, CnT 
depending on the type of project. 

In order to rapidly grow the business the Company deploys specialist firms for Project Management  and Quantity Surveying for 
some of its projects.
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Business Structure – subsidiaries and associate companies

The promoter of the Company, Mr. Nitesh Shetty has committed to carry out all real estate development business through the 
Company and will not carry out competing business through any other entity. In order to facilitate investors who wish to invest in 
the business in a limited segment, special purpose vehicles will be formed by the Company. The subsidiary of the Company, Nitesh 
Housing Developers Pvt Ltd and Nitesh Residency Hotels Pvt Ltd exemplify this. Nitesh Property Management Pvt Ltd is a wholly 
owned subsidiary created to carry out the business of facility Management. 

Geographical Footprint

The Company believes that deep insights into the community and clientele it serves, a good understanding of the policies, priorities 
and processes of the local Government administering the geographical segment is essential to succeed in the market place. The 
Company therefore has chosen to operate in the Southern Indian market. Majority of the projects in the current pipeline is located 
in Bangalore which is the headquarters of the Company. The Company has acquired rights over land in Kochi and Chennai and is 
cautiously but actively looking for opportunities in the two cities. The Company scans the Hyderabad real estate market but has 
no land arrangements currently. The Company has one project in Goa which is under construction stage and has undertaken this 
because it represented a great opportunity to create a lifestyle project and is not seeking to expand its presence in the State.

Market Segments

The Company is in the four business segments of real estate – homes, hotels, office buildings and shopping malls. The homes 
segment is a “build and sell” business where the payback period is low whereas the other three segments are “build and earn” 
capital intensive businesses where the payback period is high. With the objective of diversifying its business risk, the Company 
aims at maintaining a right balance among the four segments. Currently, there are 10 projects in the construction stage, 8 of which 
are in the homes segment, 1 in the hotels segment and 1 in the shopping malls segment.

Business Priorities and Critical Enablers

There are five business priorities:

Business Growth –There are 11 projects currently in execution having a developable area of 5.94 million sq ft. There are 
another 5 projects having a developable area of 3.54 million sq ft  which are in various stages of design and approval and 
are targeted for launch during the coming quarters. This represents  a huge growth in the intensity of the business  and 
correspondingly on the revenue and profits of the Company.

Brand Leadership – Brand research carried out through an external research firm has shown a significant improvement 
in the brand awareness of the Company over the course of last one year. During the current year further enhancement in 
top of the mind recall is targeted. We are also looking at enhancing the quality of awareness by increasing the percentage 
of people who will consider the Nitesh brand for purchase.

Execution Excellence – the consumers are highly discerning and the market is competitive. For success in the market 
place timeliness and quality of delivery are the differentiators.

Cost Leadership – With the increase in the volume of procurement, we are well placed to excite vendors with high volume 
purchases in return for preferential price and terms of business.  There is two pronged focus – one led by the costing 
team which has a material centric focus which looks at the market for the right materials and drives value engineering 
decisions. The other is led by a vendor centric focus which determines the best partners to work with and provides them 
with the volume to help them to reduce their cost to us.

Cash-flow Management – Tight control on accounts receivables and accounts payables with the objective of reducing 
the interest burden.

The above mentioned priorities require the following enablers:

Energised Team – Building an energised team requires training the focus of all resources towards a common goal, 
structuring the organisation to meet the needs of the business, setting out clearly the job descriptions of all employees, 
clearly spelling out the key performance indicators and laying out policies for rewards and recognition.  Accenture was 
contracted to develop and document the organisation structure. The first part of the project is nearing completion.

Building a high performance culture – Concurrent with the initiative mentioned above, Accenture  has also carried out 
an exercise to understand the gap between the perceived culture and the desired culture. Actions required to bridge the 
gap have been defined and are under implementation.
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Work Processes, Operating rigour and rhythm – Laying down the schedule of review meetings and standardising 
the dashboards, metrics and tracking tools to make the review effective and the operations efficient.  SAP has been 
successfully implemented as the ERP platform. The functionality is now being enhanced further by improving the way in 
which reports are generated and displayed. 

Opportunities and Threats

Opportunities in all segments of real estate development are driven by the macroeconomic forces on account of the unique 
current situation where 54% of the population consists of people less than 24 years of age, that is people who are young and 
productive. The benefits to the economy, commonly termed as the demographic dividend is benefitting the real estate sector. The 
other macroeconomic force is the rapid rate of urbanization on account of migration of population to cities, the growth centres. 
The disposable income has been steadily increasing and there is easier availability of consumer finance. The urban infrastructure 
has been creaking but there are developments taking place. All the aforesaid aspects result in opportunities in all segments of real 
estate.

The key threats to real estate business emanate from the cyclicality of the business owing to the tide and ebb in consumer and 
business confidence. The immediate challenges to the business are from:

increase in cost of commodities and building materials
increase in interest rates which could result in depressed demand from customers and at the same time increase our 
interest burden
shortage of labour and skilled technical manpower and the consequent upward pressure on cost of human resources.
legislative and bureaucratic decisions resulting in sudden changes in costs and delays in approvals related with projects

Risk management

The Company has defined the enterprise risk management framework which has been approved by the board of the Company. 
The framework defines the roles and responsibilities of the various stakeholders, the risk identification process, the classification 
and analysis of risks, the review mechanism and defines the communication channels related with risk management. A risk register 
has been put in place and the assigned owners manage the risk within their purview. The risk management gets reviewed by the 
risk management committee which in turn reports to the Audit Committee. 

Control Systems

The Company has appointed Deloitte as their internal auditor. They carry out periodic audits as per an agreed internal audit 
programme. They have brought to the attention of management issues which require their attention and have also highlighted 
the severity of the issue. Corrective actions are then set in place. The internal auditors report is reviewed by the Audit Committee 
and placed before the Board of Directors for their consideration.

Human Resources Development

Our registered and corporate office is located in Bengaluru. This houses employees who oversee our financial, administrative, 
design and planning and other reporting functions. We have not experienced any material strikes, work stoppages, labour disputes. 
As part of our strategy to improve operational efficiency, we regularly organise in-house and external training programs for our 
employees. We also follow a transparent appraisal system for our employees.

Our work-force consists of our permanent employees, consultants and labour work force that work at projects through 
sub-contractors. As of March 31, 2012, we had 235 employees. 

For the development of some of our projects, we also engage third party consultant engineers, architects, interior designers and 
landscape designers. In addition to our employees, we also engage the services of contractual workers which include tradesmen, 
car drivers, housekeeping personnel and other skilled, unskilled and semi-skilled workers. Our consultants, contractors and 
sub-contractors who work on our projects also employ a significant labour force.

                                                                                      For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
                                                                                                                                                                      
Place : Mumbai NITESH SHETTY                           
Date   :  May 25, 2012 Chairman & Managing Director
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Company’s Philosophy on Code of Governance

Your Company believes that corporate governance is a key element in improving efficiency and growth as well as enhancing 
investor confidence.
 
The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is sustained growth, increase in stakeholders’ value, total transparency, 
accounting fidelity and service quality; all with a view to achieve business excellence. The Company places high emphasis on 
business ethics. The Company follows the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics. 

The Corporate Governance framework of your Company is based on an effective Board with majority being independent Directors, 
separation of the Board’s supervisory role from the executive management team and constitution of the Board Committees, as 
required under law.

The operations of the Company are conducted under the supervision and directions of the Board within the framework set by the 
Companies Act, 1956, its Articles of Association, SEBI Guidelines, and the Listing Agreements with the stock exchanges.

1. Board of Directors

a) Composition

 The Board has an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors. The composition of the Board is in 
conformity with Clause 49 of the Listing Agreements with the stock exchanges on which the Company’s Shares are listed. 

 The Board of Directors of the Company consisted of 10 (Ten) Directors, which includes the Managing Director and two 
Whole time Director / Executive Director who are not liable to retire by rotation. The remaining seven are Non-Executive 
Directors, of which five are Independent Directors. 

 The composition of the Board is as under:

Category of Directors Names of Directors

Non- Independent Mr. Nitesh Shetty – Chairman & Managing Director
Mrs. Pushpalatha V Shetty – Non Executive Director 

Whole time/ Executive Non-Independent Mr. L S Vaidyanathan – Executive Director  – Business Development
Mr. Ashwini Kumar – Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer*

Non-Executive -Non-Independent Mr. Mahesh Bhupathi 

Non-Executive – Independent

Mr. G N Bajpai 
Mr. Darius Erach Udwadia 
Mr. James Stephen Brent 
Mr. Rangaswamy Iyer 
Mr. Ashok T Aram 

* Mr. Ashwini Kumar was inducted to the Board on April 19, 2012 designated as Executive Director & Chief Operating 
Officer. 
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b) Number of Board meetings held during the year and attendance thereat of each Director and at last Annual General 
Meeting

The Board met 8 (eight times) on the following dates during the financial year 2011-2012.

April 20, 2011 August 12, 2011

May 30, 2011 November 14, 2011
July 6, 2011 December 13, 2011
July 21, 2011 February 14, 2012

Name Category

Board 
meetings

held during 
the year

Board
meetings
attended

during
the year

Whether
attended
last AGM

Other Directorships held in 
Public Companies

as at  March 31, 2012*

Number of Chairmanship/ 
Committee membership      

as at March 31, 2012*

Chairman Director Chairman Member

Mr. Nitesh Shetty Chairman & Managing 
Director 8 5 Yes - - - -

Mr. L S Vaidyanathan Executive Director 8 8 Yes - - - 2

Mr. Ashwini Kumar ++ Executive Director & Chief 
Operating Officer 8 Nil Nil - - - -

Mrs. Pushpalatha V Shetty Non Executive Non 
Independent Director 8 Nil No - - - -

Mr. Mahesh Bhupathi Non Executive Non 
Independent Director 8 2 Yes - - - 1

Mr. G N Bajpai Independent Director 8 6 Yes - 14 5 5
Mr. Darius Erach Udwadia Independent Director 8 7 Yes 1 11 1 9
Mr. James Stephen Brent Independent Director 8 1 No - - - -
Mr. Rangaswamy Iyer Independent Director 8 6 Yes - 1 1 1
Mr. Ashok T Aram Independent Director 8 Nil No - - - -

Note:
      *a. Alternate directorships and directorships in Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies, Associations and 

Government Bodies are excluded. Only Audit Committee and Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievance Committee have 
been considered for the committee positions.

      *b. None of the Directors on the Board is a Member on more than 10 Committees and Chairman of more than 5 
Committees (as per Clause 49(I)(C)(ii)) across all the Companies in which he/ she is a Director. 

         c.  Details of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting, together with the 
information required to be provided pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement have been given along with the 
Notice of Annual General Meeting. 

++d.  Appointed as Additional Director W.E.F April 19, 2012

c) Code of Conduct

The Company had adopted the Code of Conduct for all the employees including Senior Management and the Directors. The 
Code of Conduct is posted on the Company’s website. Further, all the Board members and senior management personnel 
(as per Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement) have affirmed their compliance with the Code of Conduct. A declaration to this 
effect signed by the Chairman & Managing Director forms part of this report.

2. Audit committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process, reviewing the quarterly/
half-yearly/annual financial results / statements, reviewing with the management on the financial results / statements and 
adequacy of internal audit function, recommending the appointment/ re-appointment of statutory auditors and fixation of 
audit fees, reviewing the significant internal audit findings/related party transactions, reviewing the Management Discussion 
and Analysis of financial condition and result of operations. The Committee acts as a link between the management, external 
and internal auditors and the Board of Directors of the Company.

a) The Terms of reference of the Audit Committee cover all areas prescribed by Clause 49 II (D).
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b) The Audit Committee has also been granted the following additional powers as prescribed under Clause 49 II (C) of the 
Listing Agreement:

1. Re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or removal of the statutory auditor

2. Reviewing with management, matters required to be included in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement to be included 
in the Board’s Report in terms of clause (2AA) of Section 217 of the Companies Act, 1956

3. Reviewing with the management, the quarterly financial results before submission to the Board for approval

4. Reviewing the performance of statutory and internal auditors

5. Reviewing the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism

6. Reviewing related party transactions

7. Reviewing Management Discussion & Analysis

c) The Audit committee met six times during the year. 

April 19, 2011 September 12, 2011
May 30, 2011 November 14, 2011
August 11, 2011 February 14, 2012

d) Composition, number of meetings of the Audit Committee held during the year and Attendance of Directors 
thereat:

Name Category Meetings
held during the year Attendance

Mr. Rangaswamy Iyer Chairman 6 6
Mr. Darius Erach Udwadia Member 6 6
Mr. L S Vaidyanathan Member 6 6
Mr. G N Bajpai* Member 6 Nil

Mr. Rangaswamy Iyer, Mr. Darius Erach Udwadia and Mr. G N Bajpai are Non-Executive Independent Directors.

*  Appointed as Member of the Audit Committee with effect from May 15, 2012. 

3. Share Holders/ Investors Grievance Committee

a)   The Share Holders/ Investors Grievance Committee comprises the following members:

Name Category
Mr. Mahesh Bhupathi  - Non-Executive Director Chairman
Mr. L S Vaidyanathan - Executive Director Member

b)   Details of complaints received and resolved during the year are as under:

Particulars Nos.
Complaints received during the year ended March 31, 2012 18
Complaints resolved during the year ended March 31, 2012 18
Complaints outstanding as on March 31, 2012 Nil

4. Remuneration Committee 

 The role of the Remuneration Committee is to recommend to the Board the remuneration package of the Managing Director 
and the Executive Director.

a)  Composition:

 The Committee was reconstituted on February 11, 2011 to conform to the requirements of Schedule – XIII of the Companies 
Act, 1956 and the members of the reconstituted committee are as follows: 
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 Composition, number of meetings of the Remuneration Committee held during the year and Attendance of 
Directors thereat:

Name Category Meetings
held during the year Attendance

Mr. G N Bajpai Chairman – Non-Executive Independent Director 2 2
Mr. Darius Erach Udwadia Member –  Non-Executive Independent Director 2 2
Mr. Rangaswamy Iyer Member –  Non-Executive Independent Director 2 2
Mr. Nitesh Shetty Member (Chairman & Managing Director) 2 2

b)  The terms to the reference of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

1. Determination of remuneration packages for executive directors including pension rights and any compensation 
payments. To determine the minimum remuneration to executive directors as required under Schedule XIII of the 
Companies Act, 1956. 

2. The Remuneration Committee shall also function as Compensation Committee to look after the Compensation & 
Benefits of employees. The same committee shall also consider the benefit and administration of the ESOP or any 
other similar scheme under the Securities Exchange Board of India Guidelines as and when the same is considered by 
the Board. 

3. Such other matters as may from time to time be required by any statutory, contractual or other regulatory requirements 
to be attended to by such committee.

c)  Remuneration Policy

 The Company has a credible and transparent policy in determining and accounting for the remuneration of the Executive /
Non-Executive Directors.  Their remuneration is governed by the external competitive environment, track record, potential, 
individual performance and performance of the Company as well as industry standards.  The remuneration payable to the 
Managing Director and Executive Director is subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, the Members and Central 
Government.

 
 Remuneration paid or payable to Managing Directors for the year ended March 31, 2012

Name of Director

Salary 
(Rs.)

Perquisites 
(Rs.)

Others 
(Contribution to 
Provident Fund 

(Rs.)

Total 
(Rs.)

Mr. Nitesh Shetty*
Chairman & Managing Director 1,22,84,364 Nil 9,360 1,22,93,724

Mr. L S Vaidyanathan*
Executive Director 1,16,90,640 Nil 9,360 1,17,00,000

* The Company has obtained the approval from Central Government, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, for payment of 
remuneration under Sections 198, 309(3), 310 of the Companies Act, 1956 for Mr. L.S. Vaidyanathan  and the application 
made for Mr Nitesh Shetty is pending consideration with the Central Government.

Non-Executive Directors are remunerated by way of fees for meetings of the Board or any Committee of the Board attended 
by them respectively.

Non-Executive Directors

Details of remuneration paid to the Non-Executive Directors are as under:

Name of Director Sitting Fees  (Rs.)
Mrs. Pushpalatha V Shetty Nil
Mr. Mahesh Bhupathi 40,000.00
Mr. G N Bajpai 1,60,000.00
Mr. Darius Erach Udwadia 3,00,000.00
Mr. James Stephen Brent 20,000.00
Mr. Rangaswamy Iyer 3,00,000.00
Mr. Ashok T Aram Nil

Other than the above Sitting fees no remuneration is paid to the Non-Executive Directors of the Company.
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5. General Meetings 

a) Date, time and location of the last three Annual General Meetings:

Year Date Time Location
2011 September 28, 2011 3.00 PM Chowdiah Memorial Hall, G. D. Park Extension, Vyalikaval,  

Bangalore – 560 003
2010 September 29, 2010 10.30 AM Dr. B R Ambedkar Bhawan, Millers Road, Bangalore – 560 052
2009 September 30, 2009 10.00 AM Nitesh Timesquare, 7th Floor,   No. 8, M G Road,

Bangalore   -  560 001

b)  Whether any special resolutions passed  in the previous three Annual General Meetings (AGM):

Day, Date & Time of 
AGM

No of Special 
Resolutions 

Passed
Special Resolution passed through show of hands

Wednesday
September 28, 2011 1

Re-appointment of Mr. L. S. Vaidyanathan as a Whole-time Director 
designated as “Director-Business Development” for a period of three 
years from 1st April 2011 up to and including 31st March 2014 and the 
remuneration payable to Mr. L. S. Vaidyanathan including the minimum 
remuneration payable in the event of any loss or inadequacy of profits in 
any financial year or during the tenure of his appointment as Whole-time 
Director. 

Wednesday
September 29, 2010 1

Change in fund utilization raised from IPO pursuant to Section 61 of the 
Companies Act, 1956, and Securities & Exchange Board of India (Issue of 
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2009.

Wednesday September 
30, 2009 3

Re-classification of shares under Clause V of the Memorandum of 
Association.
Increase in authorised share capital from Rs. 10 Crores to Rs. 150 Crores.
Alteration of sub-clause (g) of Clause (4) of the Articles of Association.

Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM):

No Extraordinary General meetings were held during the financial year 2011-12.

c) Postal Ballot:

 During the year, pursuant to Section 192A of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Passing of the Resolution 
by Postal Ballot) Rules 2001, one postal ballot was conducted to 1) Re-appointment and remuneration payable to 
Mr. Nitesh Shetty, Chairman & Managing Director and 2) To make investments, loans and giving of guarantee under 
Section 372A of the Companies Act, 1956. 

 Details of the Postal Ballot conducted are as follows:

 Resolution No. 1 - Re-appointment and remuneration payable to Mr. Nitesh Shetty, Chairman & Managing Director

Particulars

No. of Equity  
Shares of Rs.10 

each   (No. of 
Votes)

Percentage of Vote 
received

Total Postal  Ballot Votes  received 6,79,46,345
Less: Invalid Postal  Ballot Votes 1,31,052
Net Valid Postal  Ballot Votes 6,78,15,293 100.00%
Assented to Resolution 6,78,00,038 99.89%
Dissented to Resolution 15,255 0.02%

Result:

The votes cast in favour of the Special Resolution are 99.89% of the total votes received and consequently, the Special 
Resolution mentioned in the Item No 1 of the Notice dated 13th December 2011 has been declared as passed by the 
requisite majority.
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 Resolution No. 2 - To make investments, loans and giving of guarantee under Section 372A of the Companies Act, 
1956: 

Particulars
No. of Equity Shares 
of Rs.10 each   (No. 

of Votes)

Percentage of Vote 
received

Total Postal  Ballot Votes received 6,79,45,139
Less: Invalid Postal  Ballot  Votes 1,27,005
Net Valid Postal  Ballot  Votes 6,78,18,134 100.00%
Assented to Resolution 6,63,09,186 97.78%
Dissented to Resolution 15,08,948 2.22%

 
 Result:

 The votes cast in favour of the Special Resolution are 97.78% of the total votes received and consequently, the Special 
Resolution mentioned in the Item No 2 of the Notice dated  13th December 2011 has been declared as passed with the 
requisite majority.

 Procedure adopted for Postal Ballot

i) The Board at its meeting held on December 13, 2011 approved the items of business to be passed through postal 
ballot and authorized the Mr. L S Vaidyanathan, Executive Director and the Mr. D Srinivasan, Company Secretary to be 
responsible for the entire process of postal ballot.

ii) Mr. S Kedarnath, Company Secretary in Practice, (Certificate of Practice Number: 4422) and who is not in employment 
with the Company was appointed as the Scrutinizer for the poll process. 

iii) Notice of postal ballot along with the ballot papers were sent to the shareholders on December 28, 2011 along with a 
self-addressed Business Reply envelope addressed to the Scrutinizer. 

iv) An advertisement was published in newspapers, in English in Financial Express and in Kannada in Hosadigantha on 
December 30, 2011 about the dispatch of ballot papers and notice of postal ballot.  

v) The duly completed postal ballot papers were received by the Scrutinizer. 
vi) Scrutinizer gave his report to the Chairman & Managing Director on January 30, 2012. 
vii) The Chairman & Managing Director announced the results of the postal ballot on January 30, 2012. 

 Result:

 The results of the Postal Ballot were announced by the Chairman & Managing Director on January 30, 2012 at the 
Company’s Registered Office. The votes cast in favor of the Special Resolution set out in the Notice sent with the Postal 
Ballot were 99.89% for resolution No. 1 and 97.78% for Resolution No. 2 of the total votes received. Consequently, the 
Special Resolutions mentioned in the Item No 1 and 2 of the Notice was declared as having been passed with the requisite 
majority.

 The above result was intimated to the Stock Exchanges, and published in the newspapers in English in Financial Express 
and in Kannada in Hosadigantha. The result was also put up on the Company’s Website.

6. Subsidiary companies

 The Company has following unlisted subsidiary companies as on March 31, 2012. 

i.  Nitesh Indiranagar Retail Private Limited
ii. Nitesh Urban Development Private Limited
iii. Nitesh Housing Developers Private Limited 
iv. Kakanad Enterprises Private Limited (formerly known as Nitesh Kochi Projects & Developers Private Limited)
v. Nitesh Property Management Private Limited

Out of the aforesaid subsidiaries, Nitesh Housing Developers Private Limited is a material non-listed subsidiary of the Company.

During the current year necessary steps will be taken to nominate Independent Director on the Board of the above material 
non-listed subsidiary of the Company. 

The Audit Committee of the Company reviews the financial statements and the investments made by these unlisted 
subsidiary companies. The minutes of the Board meetings of all the unlisted subsidiary companies including non-material 



!�

�������	
���
��������������

unlisted subsidiary company are placed at the Board meeting of the Company. The management also periodically brings to 
the attention of the Board of Directors, a statement of all significant transactions and arrangements entered, if any, by all the 
unlisted subsidiary companies.  

7. Disclosures: 

A. Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the interests 
of Company at large.

 The Audit Committee is briefed on all related party transactions undertaken by the Company and none of the related party 
transactions have any potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

B. Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange or 
SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three years.

 The Company has complied with the requirements of the Listing Agreements of the Stock Exchanges as well as regulations 
and guidelines of SEBI and other Statutory Authority on all matters relating to capital markets. No penalties or strictures 
have been imposed on the Company by these authorities. 

C. CEO/CFO Certification

 The Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer have certified to the Board in accordance with Clause 49(V) of the 
Listing Agreement on the financials for the year ended March 31, 2012 a copy of which is attached to this report.

D. Whistle Blower Policy

 The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy. The employees of the Company have direct access to the Chairman of 
the Audit Committee to report their concerns about unethical or inappropriate behavior or violation of the Company’s Code 
of Business Conduct and Ethics policy. No personnel of the Company have been denied access to the Audit Committee.   

E. NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS:

 The Company has adopted the following non-mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement:

 i. The Company has set up a Remuneration Committee pursuant to and in conformity with schedule XIII of the Companies 
Act, 1956 which has been detailed above. 

 ii. The Board of Directors of the Company comprises a perfect combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors 
who are professionals in their respective area.

8. Means of Communication: 

I. The quarterly results were published in the following News papers within 48 hours of the approval of the Board and also 
been provided to the Stock Exchanges:

i.  Financial Express (English Daily) and 
ii.  Hosa Digandha (Kannada)

II. The financial results are displayed on www.niteshestates.com
III. Management Discussion and Analysis forms part of the Directors’ Report.
IV. The official news releases are posted on the Company’s website.

General Shareholder Information 

I. Annual General Meeting 

 Date : Wednesday, September 26, 2012
 Time :  2.00 PM.
 Venue : Chowdiah Memorial Hall, G.D. Park Extension, Vyalikaval, Bangalore 560 003 
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II. Financial Calendar 

  Financial Year :  April 1 to March 31

III. Date of Book Closure

 The Companies Register of Members and Share Transfer Book’s will remain closed from September 22, 2012 to 
September 26, 2012 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of AGM.

IV. Listing Information

 The Company’s shares are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited with 
effect from May 13, 2010. 

Name of the Stock Exchanges Stock Code
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited 533202
National Stock Exchange of India Limited NITESHEST, Series-EQ

       
The ISIN Number of the Company’s Equity share is NE639K01016.

V. Stock Data

a. Monthly High & Low prices at BSE & NSE during the Financial Year 2011-12

 
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited  

(in Rupees)
National Stock Exchange of (India) Limited  

(in Rupees)
High Low High Low

April – 2011 30.80 25.10 31.70 22.60
May – 2011 29.10 24.40 29.20 24.30
June – 2011 25.75 22.05 25.85 22.10
July – 2011 24.40 21.25 24.45 21.10
August – 2011 22.70 18.00 22.90 17.85
September – 2011 20.35 16.15 20.40 16.05
October – 2011 18.85 15.15 18.50 15.60
November – 2011 19.45 15.25 19.65 15.15
December – 2011 17.70 13.60 17.75 13.50
January – 2012 19.20 14.71 19.35 14.50
February – 2012 24.85 17.80 25.00 17.35
March – 2012 21.9 13.8 19.90 13.75

b. The Company’s share performance compared to BSE Sensex & Nifty
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c. Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2012

Category No of Shareholders % of Shareholders Amount % Amount 
UPTO 1    - 5000                   10305 73.43 20184590 1.38
5001      - 10000                  1715 12.22 14711780 1.01
10001      - 20000                 1074 7.65 17180160 1.18
20001      - 30000                 285 2.03 7457890 0.51
30001      - 40000                 125 0.89 4459580 0.31
40001      - 50000                 123 0.88 5881930 0.40
50001      - 100000                174 1.24 13654890 0.94
100001 & ABOVE                     233 1.66 1374790180 94.27

Total 14034 100.00 1458321000 100.00
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d. Shareholding pattern as on March 31, 2012

Description No. of 
Shareholders Total Shares % 

Paid up Equity

Banks                                   3 5202872 3.57

Clearing Members                        31 176037 0.12

Directors & Relatives                   6 395911 0.27

Employees                               27 227300 0.16

Foreign Bodies                          1 9969312 6.84

Foreign Institutional Investor          7 28447741 19.51

H U F                                   350 716993 0.49

Indian Financial Institutions           1 6208422 4.26

Bodies Corporates                       416 13330722 9.14

Mutual Funds                            2 3615558 2.48

Non Resident Indians                    143 214725 0.15

Promoter Companies                      4 22254731 15.26

Promoter Individuals                    4 42544985 29.17

Resident Individuals                    13039 12526791 8.59

Total 14034 145832100 100
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e. Shares held in physical and dematerialized form as on March 31, 2012

Description No of Holders No of Shares % To Equity
PHYSICAL 4 8 0.00

NSDL 9669 138408263 94.91

CDSL 4361 7423829 5.09

TOTAL 14034 145832100 100.00

 

f. Details of Demat Suspense Account:

Sl. No. Particulars No of Cases No of Shares
1 Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense 

account lying at the beginning of the year (i.e. May 13, 2010 date of listing) 1 100

2 Number of shareholders who approached issuer for transfer of shares from 
suspense account during the year 1 100

3 Number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from suspense account 
during the year 1 100

4 Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense 
account lying at the end of the year Nil Nil

g. Share Transfer

 The Company has appointed Karvy Computer Share Private Ltd., as Registrars and Share Transfer Agents. Karvy’s SEBI 
Registration No. INR000000221. Share transfers are normally effected within the maximum period of 30 days from the date 
of receipt, if all the required documentation is submitted.

h. Registrar and Transfer Agents.

Karvy Computershare Private Limited 
Plot Nos. 17 to 24 Vittalrao Nagar, 
Madhapur, Hyderabad – 500 081 
Telephone No. : 040 23420818  Fax No.: 040 23421551 
Email: mailmanager@karvy.com

i. Compliance Officer:
 Mr. D Srinivasan
 Company Secretary & Chief Compliance Officer
 Nitesh Timesquare,  7th Floor,
 No. 8 M G Road,  Bangalore 560 001
 Tel: +91 80 4017 4000  Fax:+91 80 2555 0825
 Email: investor@niteshestates.com

CONFIRMATION OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT BY CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR

This is to confirm that the company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Board members and the Senior Management 
personnel and the same is available on the Company’s website.

I confirm that the company has, in respect of financial year ended March 31, 2012, received from the senior management 
personnel of the Company and the Members of the Board, a Declaration on compliance with the code of Conduct as per 
applicable to them. 

Place : Mumbai Nitesh Shetty
Date : May 25, 2012  Chairman & Managing Director
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PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To 

The Share Holders of 
Nitesh Estates Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Nitesh Estates Limited for the year ended 31st March, 
2012 as stipulated by Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the Company with the Stock Exchanges. 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examinations were limited to 
procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuing the compliance of the provisions relating to Corporate 
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the Financial Statements of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has 
complied in all material aspects with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in above mentioned Listing Agreement. 

We state that no investor grievance is pending for a period exceeding one month except where disputed or sub-judice, as per the 
records the Company, Registrar and Transfer Agents and reviewed by the Board/Committee of the Company. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency of 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Sudhindra K. S.
For S Kedarnath & Associates
Company Secretaries, 
CP No. 8190
ACS 22599

Place : Bangalore
Date : May 25, 2012

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION AS REQUIRED UNDER CLAUSE 49 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT

To 

The Board of Directors
M/s Nitesh Estates Limited 
Bangalore - 560 001

Dear Sir, 

We  Nitesh Shetty, Chairman and Managing Director and  M A Venkateshan, Chief Finance Officer appointed in terms of the Companies 
Act, 1956 certify to the Board that: 

a. We have reviewed financial statements and the Cash Flow statement for the year ended 31st March 2012 and that to the best of 
our knowledge and belief :
i. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might 

be misleading;
ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 

Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

b. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are 
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct. 

c. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated the 
effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors 
and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the 
steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

d. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee 
i. Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;
ii. Significant changes in Accounting Policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial 

statements; and 
iii. That there is no fraud which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee 

having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

                
Nitesh Shetty                        M A Venkateshan 
Chairman & Managing Director                    Chief Finance Officer
Place : Mumbai
Date  : May 25, 2012
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To 

The Members of Nitesh Estates Limited 

1. We have audited the attached balance sheet of Nitesh Estates Limited (‘the Company’) as at March 31, 2012 and also the 
statement of profit and loss and the cash flow statement for the year ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for 
our opinion.

3. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) issued by the Central Government of India in 
terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956, we enclose in the Annexure a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order. 

4. Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to:

a.  Note 39 of the financial statements regarding advance against property amounting to Rs.215,000,000 as at March 31, 
2012 towards purchase of land. The Company has initiated legal proceedings in respect of the aforesaid arrangement. 
Pending the ultimate outcome of the legal proceedings and based on legal advice, no adjustments have been made to 
the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2012.

b.  Note 29(d) of the financial statements regarding sales returns from a company owned by a key managerial personnel of 
the Company more fully described therein, having no impact on the loss for the year ended March 31, 2012.

5. The Company has tax losses during the year ended March 31, 2012 and has deferred tax assets of Rs.38,786,193 as at March 31, 
2012 (March 31, 2011-Rs.13,101,834). The Company has recognized deferred tax assets on the basis of future taxable income 
and ultimate outcome of certain ongoing and proposed projects, which in our opinion, does not meet the requirement of virtual 
certainty for recognition of deferred tax asset as required under Accounting Standard 22 “Accounting for Taxes on Income”, notified 
pursuant to the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended). This had caused us to qualify our audit opinion on the 
financial statements relating to the preceding year. Had such deferred tax assets not been recognized, loss for the year would have 
been higher by Rs.38,786,193 (profit for the year ended March 31, 2011 would have been lower by Rs. 13,101,834). Further, deferred 
tax assets and reserves and surplus as at March 31, 2012 would have been lower by Rs.38,786,193 (March 31, 2011-Rs.13,101,834).

6. As of March 31, 2012, the Company has investment of Rs.2,436,388,828 (including Share application money pending allotment 
of Rs.830,647,828) in subsidiary companies. Based on the audited financial statements of the subsidiary companies as made 
available to us by the Company, it is observed that the subsidiary companies have given advances amounting to Rs. 828,236,000 
to companies owned by or significantly influenced by key managerial personnel, towards real estate projects, which are in various 
stages of development/ project set-up. Pending settlement of such advances or achievement of profitable operations of such real 
estate projects in future as the case may be, we are unable to comment on the matter and the consequential effect, if any, on the 
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2012.
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7. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to above, we report that:

i. Except for our comment in paragraph 6 above, we have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

ii. Except for our comment in paragraph 5 above, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept 
by the Company so far as appears from our examination of those books;

iii. The balance sheet, statement of profit and loss and cash flow statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with 
the books of account;

iv. Except for our comment in paragraph 5 above, in our opinion, the balance sheet, statement of profit and loss and cash 
flow statement dealt with by this report comply with the accounting standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 
211 of the Companies Act, 1956;

v. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors, as on March 31, 2012, and taken on record by 
the Board of Directors, we report that none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2012 from being appointed 
as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956; 

vi. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us except for the effect of 
the matter stated in paragraph 5 above and the possible effect of the matter stated in paragraph 6 above, the said accounts 
give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India;

a. in the case of the balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2012; 
b. in the case of the statement of profit and loss, of the loss for the year ended on that date; and
c. in the case of cash flow statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES     
Firm Registration No.101049W
Chartered Accountants  

per Adarsh Ranka
Partner   
Membership No.: 209567 
    
Place : Mumbai
Date : May 25, 2012
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Annexure referred to in paragraph 3 of our report of even date
Re: Nitesh Estates Limited (‘the Company’)

(i) (a)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of 
fixed assets. 

 (b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were 
identified on such verification.

 (c)  There was no disposal of fixed assets during the year.

(ii) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year.

(b) The procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in 
relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

(c) The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical 
verification.

(iii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or 
unsecured to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies 
Act, 1956. However, the Company has granted interest-free advances in the nature of loans to one party covered in the 
register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. The maximum amount involved during the year was 
Rs.12,238,190 and the year-end balance was Rs.110,270. 

 (b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, and having regard to management’s representation that the 
interest-free advances are given to parties who are undertaking real estate development projects in which the Company 
has commercial interest, the rate of interest and other terms and conditions for such advances are not prima facie 
prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

       (c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no specific covenants with regard to the repayment 
of such advances. We are informed that the Company has not demanded repayment of any such advances during the 
year, and thus, there has been no default on the part of the parties to whom the advances have been granted. The 
advances given are interest free. 

 (d) There is no overdue amount of such advances granted to parties listed in the register maintained under section 301 of 
the Companies Act, 1956.

  (e)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not taken any loans, secured or unsecured 
from companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 
1956. However, the Company has taken interest-free advances in the nature of loans from two parties covered in the 
register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act 1956. The maximum amount involved during the year was 
Rs.62,544,628 and the year-end balance was Rs.43,269,441.

 (f )    In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions for such interest-
free advances are not prima facie prejudicial to the interest of the Company. 

 (g)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no specific covenants with regard to the repayment 
of such advances. As informed to us, the Company has repaid the advances as demanded during the year, and thus, there 
has been no default on the part of the Company. The advances taken are interest free.

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an adequate internal control system 
commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business, for the purchase of fixed assets, however, the 
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internal control system with respect to timely documentation for purchase of inventory and for rendering of services require 

further strengthening. The activities of the Company do not involve sale of goods. During the course of our audit, we have 

not observed any major weakness or continuing failure to correct any major weakness in the internal control system of the 

Company in respect of these areas. 

(v) (a)  According to the information and explanations provided by the management, we are of the opinion that the particulars 

of contracts or arrangements referred to in section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 that need to be entered into the 

register maintained under section 301 have been so entered.

 (b)  In respect of transactions made in pursuance of such contracts or arrangements and exceeding the value of Rupees 

five lakhs entered into during the financial year, because of the unique and specialized nature of the items involved and 

absence of any comparable prices, we are unable to comment whether the transactions were made at prevailing market 

prices at the relevant time.

(vi) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

(vii) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(viii)  We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by the Central 

Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 209(1)(d) of the Act and are of the opinion that prima facie, 

the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.

(ix) (a)  Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, investor education and protection fund, employees’ state insurance, 

income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess and other material statutory dues have 

generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities. 

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident 

fund, investor education and protection fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, wealth-tax, service tax, sales-tax, 

customs duty, excise duty cess and other material statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more 

than six months from the date they became payable.

 (c)  According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax, service tax, customs 

duty, excise duty and cess on account of any dispute, are as follow:

Name of the 
statute

Nature of dues Amount (Rs.) Period to which the 
amount relates

Forum where dispute is pending

Income Tax Act, 
1961

Income tax 418,536 FY 2006-07 Commissioner of Income-tax (Appeals)
29,857,170 FY 2007-08

5,140,706 FY 2008-09
Finance Act, 
1994

Service tax and 
penalty

31,156,450 FY 2006-08 Customs, Excise and Service Tax 
Appellate Tribunal

(x) The Company has no accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and it has incurred cash losses in the current financial 

year. In the immediately preceding financial year, the Company had not incurred cash loss.

(xi) Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the management, we are of the opinion 

that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution or bank. The Company did not have any 

outstanding debentures during the year.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the documents and records produced before us, 

the Company has not granted loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other 

securities.
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(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi / mutual benefit fund / society. Therefore, the provisions of clause 
4(xiii) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) are not applicable to the Company.

(xiv)  In our opinion, the Company is not dealing in or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments. Accordingly, 
the provisions of clause 4(xiv) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) are not applicable to the 
Company.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has given guarantee for loan taken by subsidiary 
from bank, the terms and conditions whereof, in our opinion, are not prima-facie prejudicial to the interest of the Company, 
having regard to management’s representation that the guarantee is given to subsidiary in the interest of the Company’s 
business. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any guarantee for loans 
taken by others from financial institutions.

(xvi)  Based on information and explanations given to us by the management, term loans, except for term loan of Rs.75 million 
taken and utilized in the previous year and outstanding as at the balance sheet date, were applied for the purpose for which the 
loans were obtained.

(xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of the 
Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term investment.

(xviii) The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties or companies covered in the register maintained 
under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

(xix)  The Company did not have any outstanding debentures during the year.

(xx)  The Company has not raised any money through a public issue during the year.

(xxi)  Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial statements 
and as per the information and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud on or by the Company has 
been noticed or reported during the year.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES     
Firm Registration No.101049W
Chartered Accountants  

per Adarsh Ranka
Partner   
Membership No.: 209567 
    
Place : Mumbai
Date : May 25, 2012
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 Amount in Rupees 

Notes As at 
31-Mar-12

As at          
31-Mar-11

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
Share  capital 3 1,458,321,000 1,458,321,000
Reserves and surplus 4 3,133,658,136 3,181,525,532

4,591,979,136 4,639,846,532
Non-current liabilities
Long-term  borrowings 5 126,769,883 2,343,655
Long-term  provisions 6 3,811,987 4,159,427

 130,581,870  6,503,082 
Current liabilities
Short-term  borrowings 7 415,100,000 150,000,000
Trade  payables 8 304,364,713 205,674,433
Other current  liabilities 9 702,556,962 287,881,019
Short-term  provisions 6 10,262,405 50,050,513

1,432,284,080 693,605,965
Total 6,154,845,086 5,339,955,579

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed  assets  
   Tangible  assets 10 33,575,211 39,940,320
   Intangible  assets 11 32,098,670 3,465,278
   Intangible assets under development  - 32,768,040
Non-current investments 12 2,317,149,023 667,606,562
Deferred tax assets (net) 13 38,786,193 13,101,834
Long- term loans and advances 14 1,845,883,003 3,037,808,787
Other non-current assets 16  2,435,817  3,050,000 

4,269,927,917 3,797,740,821
Current assets
Current investments 17 - 1,237,154
Inventories 18 634,778,116 346,642,106
Trade receivables 15 368,496,629 533,193,590
Cash and bank balances 19 36,611,797 11,347,978
Short-term loans and advances 14 745,158,392 594,792,012
Other current assets 16 99,872,235 55,001,918

1,884,917,169 1,542,214,758
Total 6,154,845,086 5,339,955,579

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date 

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
of  Nitesh Estates LimitedFirm Registration No.101049W

Chartered Accountants

per Adarsh Ranka Nitesh Shetty L.S. Vaidyanathan
Partner                                                  Managing Director Executive Director
Membership No: 209567

D. Srinivasan Venkateshan M.A.
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date : May 25, 2012 Date : May 25, 2012
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Amount in Rupees

Notes Year ended 
31-Mar-12

Year ended 
31-Mar-11

Income

Revenue from operations 20  790,313,861  977,134,993 

Other income 21  1,174,420  106,805,524 

Total revenue (I) 791,488,281 1,083,940,517

Expenses

Land purchase cost 29(d) 2,503,057  97,909,202 

Cost of material consumed 22  18,787,253  132,037,696 

Subcontracting charges  658,603,794  527,309,452 

Purchase of developed property (apartment)  -  70,562,885 

(Increase)/decrease in inventories 23 (288,136,010) (153,551,645)

Employee benefits expense 24  116,027,218  138,833,103 

Other expenses 25  271,041,271  178,421,292 

Total Expenses (II) 778,826,583 991,521,985

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and  
amortization (EBITDA) (I)-(II) 12,661,698 92,418532

Depreciation and amortization expense 26  18,132,267  6,567,103 

Finance costs 27 65,824,805 56,903,755

Profit/(loss) before tax (71,295,374) 28,947,674

Tax expenses

Current tax  -  - 

Deferred tax charge/(credit) (25,684,359) (8,702,330)

Total tax expense (25,684,359) (8,702,330)

Profit/(loss) for the year (45,611,015)  37,650,004 

Earnings per equity share 

[nominal value of share Rs.10 (Previous year : Rs.10)]

Basic and Diluted (0.31) 0.27

Weighted average number of shares used in computing basic and 
diluted earnings per share  145,832,100  137,612,922 

Net profit/(loss) used in computing basic and diluted earnings per share (45,611,015)  37,650,004 

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date 

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
of  Nitesh Estates LimitedFirm Registration No.101049W

Chartered Accountants

per Adarsh Ranka Nitesh Shetty L.S. Vaidyanathan
Partner                                                  Managing Director Executive Director
Membership No: 209567

D. Srinivasan Venkateshan M.A.
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date : May 25, 2012 Date : May 25, 2012
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Year ended 
31-Mar-12

Year ended 
31-Mar-11

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit/(loss) before tax  (71,295,374)  28,947,674 

Non-cash adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

    Share of profit from investment in association of persons (post-tax)  -  (17,571,481)

    Depreciation and amortization expense 18,132,267  6,567,103 

Finance costs 64,386,884  56,024,049 

Interest income  (472,243)  (4,047,120)

Dividend income  (47,064)  (38,734,787)

Operating profit/ (loss) before working capital changes  10,704,470  31,185,438 

Movements in working capital:

Increase / (decrease) in trade payables 98,690,280  9,626,463 

Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities 414,675,943  (98,043,010)

Increase / (decrease) in provisions  (42,391,929)  3,985,676 

(Increase) / decrease in inventories  (288,136,010)  (153,551,645)

(Increase) / decrease in trade receivables  164,696,961  (239,379,359)

(Increase) / decrease in loans and advances  (415,437,010)  (214,011,389)

(Increase) / decrease in other current assets  (44,525,704)  (55,946,507)

Cash (used in) / generated from operations  (101,722,999)  (716,134,333)

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)  -  (15,524,995)

Net cash (used in)/ generated from operating activities - (A)  (101,722,999)  (731,659,328)

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of fixed assets including intangible assets, Intangible assets under 
development and capital advances  (7,632,510)  (37,375,837)

Investment in subsidiaries (including share application money)  (236,641,000)  (2,146,490,061)

Refund of share application money from subsidiaries  248,196,414  - 

Purchase of investments in associates  (204,101,461)  (130,000,000)

Purchase of current investments - mutual fund units  -  (9,599,467,950)

Investment in fixed deposit with maturity of more than 3 months  (598,057)  (1,431,943)

Proceeds from sale of current investments - mutual fund units  1,284,218  9,638,012,143 

Interest received  741,813  3,715,590 

Net cash from/ (used in) investing activities - (B)  (198,750,583)  (2,273,038,058)
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Year ended 
31-Mar-12

Year ended 
31-Mar-11

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of shares -  4,050,000,000 

Payment of share issue expenses -  (313,662,446)

Proceeds from long term borrowings 125,000,000  152,568,712 

Repayment of long term borrowings  (573,772)  (959,547,733)

Proceeds from short term borrowings 340,100,000  150,000,000 

Repayment of short term borrowings  (75,000,000)  (25,865,000)

Finance costs paid  (64,386,884)  (56,586,644)

Net cash from/ (used in) financing activities - (C)  325,139,344  2,996,906,889 

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents - (A+B+C)  24,665,762  (7,790,497)

Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year 9,916,035  17,706,532 

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year  34,581,797  9,916,035 

Components of cash and cash equivalents:

Cash on hand 550,237  67,864 

Balances with scheduled banks:

In Current accounts 22,231,560  9,848,171 

In Deposit accounts 11,800,000  - 

 34,581,797  9,916,035 

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

As per our report of even date 

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
of  Nitesh Estates LimitedFirm Registration No.101049W

Chartered Accountants

per Adarsh Ranka Nitesh Shetty L.S. Vaidyanathan
Partner                                                  Managing Director Executive Director
Membership No: 209567

D. Srinivasan Venkateshan M.A.
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date : May 25, 2012 Date : May 25, 2012
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012

1. Corporate information

Nitesh Estates Limited (the Company or  ‘NEL’) was incorporated on February 20, 2004. NEL is a real estate developer engaged 
in the business of development, sale, management and operation of all or any part of housing and hotel projects, commercial 
premises and other related activities. 

On April 23, 2010, the Company launched its Initial Public Offer (IPO) of 75,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each for cash at a 
price of Rs.54 each and raised capital of Rs.4,050,000,000. Pursuant to the IPO, the Company’s shares are listed on The National 
Stock Exchange and The Bombay Stock Exchange effective May 13, 2010.

2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
in India (Indian GAAP). The Company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material respects with the 
Accounting Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and the relevant 
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on 
an accrual basis. 

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and are consistent with those used in the previous 
year, except for the change in accounting policy explained below.

 2.1 Summary of significant accounting policies

  a) Change in accounting policy

   Presentation and disclosure of financial statements

   During the year ended March 31, 2012, the revised Schedule VI notified under the Companies Act, 1956, has 
become applicable to the Company, for preparation and presentation of its financial statements. The adoption of 
revised Schedule VI does not impact recognition and measurement principles followed for preparation of financial 
statements. However, it has significant impact on presentation and disclosures made in the financial statements. 
The Company has also reclassified the previous year figures in accordance with the requirements applicable in the 
current year. 

  b) Use of estimates

   The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates 
are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these 
assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts 
of assets or liabilities in future periods.

  c) Fixed assets

    i. Tangible fixed assets

    Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost 
comprises the purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost 
of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are 
deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

    Subsequent expenditure related to an item of tangible fixed asset is added to its book value only if it increases 
the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other 
expenses on existing fixed assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of 
replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses 
are incurred.
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    Gains or losses arising from derecognition of tangible fixed assets are measured as the difference between 
the net of disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of 
profit and loss when the asset is derecognized. 

   ii. Intangible fixed assets

    Intangible fixed assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial 
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. 

    Gains or losses arising from derecognition of intangible fixed assets are measured as the difference between 
the net of disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of 
profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

  d) Depreciation / amortisation

   Depreciation on assets is provided using written down value method (‘WDV’) at the rates prescribed under 
Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956, which is also estimated by the management to be the estimated useful 
lives of the assets.

 Schedule XIV Rates (WDV)

Computers 40.00%

Office Equipment 13.91%

Furniture and Fittings 18.10%

Motor Cars 25.89%

 Leasehold improvements are amortised over the remaining primary period of lease upto 10 years or their 
estimated useful life, whichever is shorter, on a straight-line basis.

 Assets individually costing less than or equal to Rs.5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase. 

 Intangible fixed assets - Computer software is amortised using straight line method over a period of 5 years, 
which is estimated by the management to be the useful life of the asset.

 e) Impairment of tangible and intangible fixed assets

  The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset  may be impaired. If any 
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s 
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net 
selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset 
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where 
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is 
written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken 
into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

  The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared 
separately for each of the Company’s cash-generating units to which the individual  assets  are  allocated.  These  
budgets  and  forecast  calculations  are  generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long term 
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

  Impairment  losses,  including  impairment  on  inventories,  are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 
After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful 
life.

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)
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 f) Leases

  Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item, 
are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of 
profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

 g) Investments

  Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on 
which such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as non 
current investments. 

  On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and directly 
attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.

  Current investments are carried in the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value determined on an 
individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in the 
value is made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of investments.

  On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or 
credited to the statement of profit and loss.

 h) Inventories

  Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct and indirect expenditure, 
which is determined based on specific identification to the construction activity.

  Direct expenditure relating to construction activity is inventorised. Indirect expenditure (including borrowing 
costs) during construction period is inventorised to the extent the expenditure is related to construction or is 
incidental thereto. Other indirect expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction 
period which is neither related to the construction activity nor is incidental thereto is charged to the statement of 
profit and loss. 

  Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

 i) Revenue recognition

  Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and 
the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue 
is recognized:

  Income from contractual activities

  Revenue from fixed price construction contracts is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the 
project at the reporting date. The stage of completion of project is determined by the proportion that contract 
costs incurred for work performed up to the reporting date bear to the estimated total contract costs. When 
estimated contract costs exceed contract revenue, the expected loss is recognized immediately. 

  Revenue from cost plus construction contracts is recognized on the basis of an agreed mark up on costs incurred, 
in accordance with the terms of the agreement entered into by the Company and its customers.

  Revenue from other contractual activities is recognized as activities are performed, on an accrual basis, based on 
arrangements with concerned parties.

  Contract revenue earned in excess of billing has been reflected under “Other current assets” and billing in excess 
of contract revenue has been reflected under “Other current liabilities” in the balance sheet. 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)
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  Income from property development

  Revenue from real estate under development is recognised upon transfer of all significant risks and rewards 
of ownership of such real estate, as per the terms of the contracts entered into with buyers, which generally 
coincides with the firming of the sales contracts/ agreements, except for contracts where the Company still has 
obligations to perform substantial acts even after the transfer of all significant risks and rewards. In such cases, 
the revenue is recognised on percentage of completion method, when the stage of completion of each project 
reaches a reasonable level of progress. Revenue is recognised in proportion that the contract costs incurred for 
work performed up to the reporting date bear to the estimated total contract costs. Land costs are not included 
for the purpose of computing the percentage of completion.

  Income from sale of developed property

  Revenue from sale of developed property is recognised upon transfer of all significant risks and rewards of 
ownership of such developed property, as per the terms of the contracts entered into with buyers, which generally 
coincides with the firming of the sales contracts/ agreements.

  Share in profits of Association of Person (‘AOP’)

  The Company’s share in profits from AOP where the Company is a member, is recognised on the basis of such 
AOP’s audited accounts, as per terms of the agreement.

  Interest income

  Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate 
applicable

 j) Foreign currency translation

  Initial Recognition

  Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount 
the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

  Conversion

  Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in 
terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the 
transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a 
foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

  Exchange Differences

  Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting such monetary items of the 
Company at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous 
financial statements, are recognized as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.

 k) Borrowing costs

  Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily 
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the 
respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

 l) Retirement and other employee benefits

  Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are 
charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. 
There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective trusts.

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)
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  Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on 
projected unit credit method made at the reporting date. The gratuity liability is not externally funded. Actuarial 
gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

  Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee     
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to 
pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. 

  The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond 12 months, as long-term employee 
benefit for measurement purpose. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for  based on the actuarial 
valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to 
the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Company presents the entire leave as a current liability 
in the balance sheet, since it does not have any unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the 
reporting date.

 m) Income taxes

  Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be 
paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing 
in the respective tax jurisdictions where the Company operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the 
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current income tax relating to 
items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of profit and loss.

  Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and accounting income 
originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred tax is measured 
using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred income tax 
relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of profit and loss.

  Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for 
deductible timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable 
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. In situations where the Company 
has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is 
virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realized against future taxable profits.

  At  each  reporting date,  the Company re-assesses unrecognized deferred  tax  assets.  It recognizes unrecognized 
deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that 
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

  The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each  reporting date.  The Company writes-down the 
carrying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as 
the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be 
realized. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as 
the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

  Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity 
and the same taxation authority.

  Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The 
Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the 
Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed 
to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax 
Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as “MAT Credit 
Entitlement.” The Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down 
the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the 
specified period.

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)
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 n) Advances/deposits against property

  Advances paid by the Company to the seller/ intermediary toward outright purchase of land is recognized as 
‘Advances against property’ under Loans and Advances during the course of obtaining clear and marketable title, 
free from all encumbrances and transfer of legal title to the Company, whereupon it is transferred to work in 
progress. 

  Deposits paid by the Company to the seller towards right for development of land in exchange of constructed 
area are recognized as deposits under Loans and Advances, unless they are non-refundable, wherein they are 
transferred to inventories on the launch of project.

 o) Provisions 

  A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable 
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and 
are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates 
are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

 p) Contingent liabilities

  A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or 
a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required 
to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that 
cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent 
liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

 q) Earnings per share

  Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for event of bonus issue. 

  For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects 
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

 r) Cash and cash equivalents

  Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-
term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

 s) Measurement of EBITDA

   As permitted by the Guidance Note on the Revised Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956, the Company has 
elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item 
on the face of the statement of profit and loss. The Company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/(loss). In 
its measurement, the Company does not include depreciation and amortization expense, finance costs and tax 
expense. 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)
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Amount in Rupees

Particular
As at 

31-Mar-12
As at 

31-Mar-11
3.  Share capital
Authorised shares

150,000,000 (Previous year : 150,000,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each 1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000

1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
145,832,100 (Previous year : 145,832,100) Equity shares of Rs.10 each  1,458,321,000  1,458,321,000 
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 1,458,321,000 1,458,321,000

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year Equity shares:

31- Mar-12 31- Mar-11
No. of shares Amount in Rupees No. of shares Amount in Rupees

At the beginning of the year  145,832,100  1,458,321,000  70,832,100  708,321,000 
Issued during the year  -  -  75,000,000  750,000,000 
Outstanding at the end of the year 145,832,100 1,458,321,000 145,832,100 1,458,321,000

(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares:

 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled 
to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of 
Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

 During the year ended March 31, 2012, the amount of per share dividend recognized as distributions to equity shareholders 
was Rs.Nil (Previous year : Rs.0.25).

 In event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, 
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the 
shareholders.

(c) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, share issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back 
during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date :

31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11
No. of shares No. of shares

Equity shares allotted during the year ended March 31, 2010 as fully paid bonus 
shares by capitalisation of securities premium of Rs.567,020,724 and balance in 
profit and loss account of Rs.61,027,176 in the ratio of nine equity shares for every 
one equity share held.

62,804,790 62,804,790

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

31- Mar-12 31- Mar-11

No. of shares % of holding in 
the class No. of shares % of holding in 

the class
Equity shares of  Rs.10 each fully paid       
Nitesh Shetty, Managing Director  42,513,685  29.15  42,308,385  29.01 
Nitesh Industries Private Limited  14,205,386  9.74  12,767,096  8.75 
Nomura India Investment Fund Mother Fund  12,971,738  8.89  12,971,738  8.89 
HSBC Bank (Mauritius) Limited  11,666,062  8.00  11,666,062  8.00 
AMIF I Limited  9,969,312  6.84  10,203,700  7.00 

Note: As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declaration received from 
shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represent both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)
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 Amount in Rupees
As at 

31-Mar-12
As at 

31-Mar-11

4. Reserves and surplus

Securities premium account
Balance as per the last financial statements  3,125,854,554  139,517,000 
Add : Premium on issue of equity shares (Refer note 41)  -  3,300,000,000 
Less: Share issue expenses (Refer note 41)  - (313,662,446)
Closing balance 3,125,854,554 3,125,854,554

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Balance as per last financial statements  55,670,978  58,138,151 
Profit/(loss) for the year (45,611,015)  37,650,004 
Less: Appropriations    
         Proposed equity dividend [amount per share Rs. Nil (Previous year : Rs.0.25)]  -  34,403,230 
         Tax on proposed equity dividend  -  5,713,947 
         Dividend for the preceding year  2,055,767  - 
         Tax on dividend for the preceding year  200,614  - 
         Total appropriations 2,256,381 40,117,177
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss 7,803,581 55,670,978
Total reserves and surplus 3,133,658,136 3,181,525,532

Amount in Rupees
Non-current portion Current portion

 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11
5.  Long-term borrowings

Term loans 
Indian rupee loan
        From financial institutions (secured)  126,769,883  2,343,655 594,326 594,472

 126,769,883  2,343,655  594,326  594,472 
Amount disclosed under the head “other current liabilities” 
(refer note 9)

 -  - (594,326) (594,472)

126,769,883 2,343,655 - -

The above amount includes Secured borrowings  126,769,883  2,343,655  594,326  594,472 

The above amounts includes borrowings which have been 
guaranteed by directors

 125,000,000  -  -  - 

 (a) The Company had taken a loan of Rs.3,154,184  from a financial institution on September 30, 2010 for a period of 60 
months. The loan is repayable in 60 monthly installments of Rs. 65,544 with an interest rate of 9.3% per annum. The loan 
is secured by way of hypothecation of vehicles acquired out of the loan proceeds. The loan balance at the end of the year 
is Rs. 2,364,209 (Previous year:  Rs. 2,938,127).

 (b) The Company had taken a loan of Rs.125,000,000 (Sanction amount of Rs.150,000,000) from a financial institution on 
April 17, 2011 for a period of 60 months.  The loan is repayable in 24 monthly installments beginning 3 years from the 
date of first disbursement at an interest rate based on the Bank’s Prime Lending Rate. The loan is secured by way of 
mortgage on Company’s share of project specific properties and hypothecation of project specific receivables of the 
Company and further secured by personal guarantee of Managing Director of the Company. The loan balance at the end 
of the year is Rs.125,000,000 (Previous year: Rs. Nil).

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)
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Amount in Rupees
Long-term Short-term

31-March-12 31-March-11 31-March-12 31-March-11
6. Provisions

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for gratuity  3,811,987  4,159,427  193,922  147,380 

Provision for leave benefits  -  -  10,068,483  9,785,956 

3,811,987 4,159,427 10,262,405 9,933,336
Other Provisions

Proposed equity dividend  -  -  -  34,403,230 

Tax on proposed equity dividend  -  -  -  5,713,947 

- - - 40,117,177

Total 3,811,987 4,159,427 10,262,405 50,050,513

Amount in Rupees

As at 
31-Mar-12

As at 
31-Mar-11

7. Short-term borrowings

Indian rupee loan
  - from a bank (secured) 190,100,000 -
  - from a financial institution (secured) 225,000,000  150,000,000 

415,100,000 150,000,000

The above amount includes Secured borrowings  415,100,000  150,000,000 

The above amounts includes borrowings which have been guaranteed by 
directors

 415,100,000  150,000,000 

 Notes:

 (a) The Company had taken a loan of Rs.150,000,000 (Sanction amount of Rs.150,000,000) from a financial institution on 
December 15, 2010 for a period of 18 months.  The loan is repayable in 12 monthly installments of  Rs. 2.5 crores beginning 
from the 12th month at an interest rate based on the Bank’s Prime Lending Rate. The loan is secured by way of mortgage 
on Company’s share of project specific properties and hypothecation of receivables of the Company and further secured 
by personal guarantee of Managing Director of the Company. The loan balance at the end of the reporting period is 
Rs.75,000,000 (Previous year: Rs.150,000,000).

 (b) The Company had taken a loan of Rs.190,100,000 (Sanction amount of Rs.300,000,000) from a bank on May 5, 2011 for a 
period of 36 months. The loan is repayable in 12 monthly installments of Rs. 2.5 crores beginning from the  25th month 
at an interest rate based on the Bank’s Prime Lending Rate. The loan is secured by way of mortgage on Company’s share 
of project specific properties and further secured by personal guarantee of Managing Director of the Company. The loan 
balance at the end of the reporting period is Rs.190,100,000 (Previous year: Rs.Nil).

 (c) The Company had taken a loan of Rs.150,000,000 (Sanction amount of Rs.350,000,000) from a financial institution on June 
23, 2011 for a period of 30 months. The loan is repayable in 12 monthly installments of Rs. 3 crores beginning from the 
19th month at an interest rate based on the Corporate Prime Lending Rate. The loan is secured by way of mortgage on 
Company’s share of project specific properties and further secured by personal guarantee of Managing Director of the 
Company. The loan balance at the end of the reporting period is Rs. 150,000,000 (Previous year: Rs.Nil).

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)
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Amount in Rupees
As at 

31-Mar-12
As at 

31-Mar-11
8.  Trade payable

Trade payable  304,364,713  205,674,433 
304,364,713 205,674,433

 Note:  Based on the information available with the Company, there are no suppliers who are registered as micro, small and 
medium enterprises under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Amount in Rupees
As at 

31-Mar-12
As at 

31-Mar-11
9. Other current liabilities

Current maturities of long-term borrowings*  594,326  594,472 
Advance from customers  416,861,814  258,169,614 
Billing in excess of revenue  180,036,602  - 
Short term employee benefits payable  4,200,000  - 
Statutory dues payable  100,864,220  29,116,933 

702,556,962 287,881,019

* Current maturities of long-term borrowings represents amount repayable within the operating cycle. Amount payable within 
twelve months Rs.594,326 (Previous year: Rs.594,472).

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)



���

�������	
���
��������������

N
ot

es
 to

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

ts
 fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r e
nd

ed
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

2 
(C

on
td

.)

A
m

ou
nt

 in
 R

up
ee

s

Le
as

eh
ol

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
Co

m
pu

te
rs

O
ffi

ce
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t
Fu

rn
it

ur
e 

&
 fi

xt
ur

es
Ve

hi
cl

es
To

ta
l

10
.  

Ta
ng

ib
le

 a
ss

et
s

G
ro

ss
 b

lo
ck

A
s 

at
 1

 A
pr

il 
20

10
 1

2,
65

0,
93

4 
 8

,3
91

,2
23

 
 7

,0
03

,2
81

 
 5

,7
52

,6
27

 
 1

4,
15

6,
86

7 
 4

7,
95

4,
93

2 

Ad
di

tio
ns

 3
,7

28
,4

47
 

 1
1,

06
4,

79
8 

 4
73

,4
19

 
 2

,0
86

,9
76

 
 3

,1
54

,1
84

 
 2

0,
50

7,
82

4 

A
s 

at
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1
16

,3
79

,3
81

19
,4

56
,0

21
7,

47
6,

70
0

7,
83

9,
60

3
17

,3
11

,0
51

68
,4

62
,7

56

Ad
di

tio
ns

 - 
 1

,2
12

,7
10

 
 2

,6
87

,0
50

 
 1

15
,4

70
 

 - 
 4

,0
15

,2
30

 

A
s 

at
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

2
16

,3
79

,3
81

20
,6

68
,7

31
10

,1
63

,7
50

7,
95

5,
07

3
17

,3
11

,0
51

72
,4

77
,9

86

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n

A
s 

at
 1

 A
pr

il 
20

10
 3

,3
98

,6
47

 
 6

,3
69

,2
73

 
 2

,4
68

,7
61

 
 2

,4
13

,1
88

 
 8

,2
00

,4
33

 
 2

2,
85

0,
30

2 

Ch
ar

ge
 fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r 
 1

,2
38

,5
59

 
 1

,0
05

,6
27

 
 6

78
,0

94
 

 8
16

,2
04

 
 1

,9
33

,6
50

 
 5

,6
72

,1
34

 

A
s 

at
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1
4,

63
7,

20
6

7,
37

4,
90

0
3,

14
6,

85
5

3,
22

9,
39

2
10

,1
34

,0
83

28
,5

22
,4

36

Ch
ar

ge
 fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r
 1

,7
97

,7
28

 
 5

,0
58

,9
06

 
 7

41
,2

97
 

 9
24

,2
91

 
 1

,8
58

,1
17

 
 1

0,
38

0,
33

9 

A
s 

at
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

2
6,

43
4,

93
4

12
,4

33
,8

06
3,

88
8,

15
2

4,
15

3,
68

3
11

,9
92

,2
00

38
,9

02
,7

75

N
et

 b
lo

ck

A
s 

at
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1
11

,7
42

,1
75

12
,0

81
,1

21
4,

32
9,

84
5

4,
61

0,
21

1
7,

17
6,

96
8

39
,9

40
,3

20

A
s 

at
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

2
9,

94
4,

44
7

8,
23

4,
92

5
6,

27
5,

59
8

3,
80

1,
39

0
5,

31
8,

85
1

33
,5

75
,2

11



��!

�������	
���
��������������

 Amount in Rupees

Computer  software Total

11. Intangible assets

Gross block

As at 1 April 2010  4,480,318  4,480,318 

Additions  1,236,260  1,236,260 

As at 31 March 2011 5,716,578 5,716,578

Additions  36,385,320  36,385,320 

As at 31 March 2012 42,101,898 42,101,898

Amortization

As at 1 April 2010  1,170,997  1,170,997 

Charge for the year  1,080,303  1,080,303 

As at 31 March 2011 2,251,300 2,251,300

Charge for the year  7,751,928  7,751,928 

As at 31 March 2012 10,003,228 10,003,228

Net block

As at 31 March 2011 3,465,278 3,465,278

As at 31 March 2012 32,098,670 32,098,670

Amount in Rupees
As at  31-Mar-12 As at 31-Mar-11

12. Non-current investments

A. Trade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)
Investments in equity instruments (unquoted)
Investment in subsidiaries
23,598,000 equity shares (Previous year: 1,160,000) of Rs.10 each fully paid up in  
Nitesh Indiranagar Retail Private Limited 1,323,900,000 115,100,000
4,494,900 equity shares (Previous year: 4,494,900)  of Rs.10 each fully paid up in  
Nitesh Housing Developers Private Limited (Refer note 37) 44,949,000 44,949,000
10,000 equity shares (Previous year: 10,000) of Rs.10 each fully paid up in  
Kakanad Enterprises Private Limited (formerly Nitesh Kochi Projects & Developers 
Private Limited) 100,000 100,000
6,672,000 equity shares (Previous year: 5,100) of Rs.10 each fully paid up in  
Nitesh Urban Development Private Limited 236,692,000 51,000
10,000 equity shares (Previous year: 10,000) of Rs.10 each fully paid up in  
Nitesh Property Management Private Limited 100,000 100,000

Investment in associates
30,680,579 (Previous year: 29,120,579) Class A equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 
in Nitesh Residency Hotels Private Limited (Refer note 29(c )) 605,805,790 410,805,790

Other non-current investments (unquoted)
Investment in joint ventures
24% (Previous year: 24%) share in association of persons Nitesh Estates -Whitefield
[Includes accumulated share of profit of Rs.64,444,310 (Previous year: Rs.55,342,849)] 105,545,033 96,443,572

2,317,091,823 667,549,362

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)
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As at  31-Mar-12 As at 31-Mar-11
B. Other Investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)
Investment in Government and trust securities (unquoted)
National Savings Certificate 57,200 57,200

57,200 57,200
2,317,149,023 667,606,562

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 2,317,149,023 667,606,562

Note: The Company has made further investments in its subsidiaries based on the independent valuation reports obtained by the Company and 
as approved by the Board. As at the balance sheet date, the subsidiary companies are in various stages of development/ project set-up and hence, 
the management believes that there is no diminution other than temporary in the value of its investments.

13. Deferred tax assets (net)
Deferred tax liability
Fixed assets : Impact of differences between tax depreciation and  
depreciation/amortization charged for financial reporting 4,191,759 -

4,191,759 -
Deferred tax asset

Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current year 
but allowed for tax purpose on payment basis 4,566,438 4,681,486
Fixed assets : Impact of differences between tax depreciation and  
depreciation/amortization charged for financial reporting -  16,348 
Effect of tax losses  38,411,514 8,404,000
Gross deferred tax asset 42,977,952 13,101,834
Net deferred tax asset 38,786,193 13,101,834
Note:  The Company has tax losses during the year ended March 31, 2012 and 2011. The management is reasonably confident of realization of 
deferred tax assets based on the future taxable income and ultimate outcome of ongoing and proposed projects.

Amount in Rupees
Non-current Current

31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11
14.  Loans and advances
Capital advances
Unsecured, considered good  1,600,000  - -  - 

 1,600,000  - -  - 
Security Deposit*  21,388,874  21,015,424 59,382,265  53,482,265 
Unsecured, considered good  21,388,874  21,015,424  59,382,265  53,482,265 

Loan and advances to related parties
Unsecured, considered good -  - 126,704,706  180,592,371 

 -  - 126,704,706  180,592,371 
Other loans and advances (unsecured, considered good)
Vendor advances  -  - 307,808,294  170,620,219 
Advance income-tax (net of provision for taxation)  42,651,946  21,513,966  -  - 
Advance against property* 894,853,850  650,635,155 142,801,121  148,700,752 
MAT credit entitlement 7,000,000  7,000,000  -  - 
Balances with statutory/government authorities  -  - 108,462,006  41,396,405 
Share application money pending allotment 878,388,333 2,337,644,242 -  - 

1,822,894,129 3,016,793,363  559,071,421  360,717,376 
1,845,883,003 3,037,808,787 745,158,392 594,792,012

* Advances/deposits against property though unsecured, are considered good as the advances / deposits have been given based on arrangements/
memorandum of understanding executed by the Company. The Company/ seller/  intermediary is in the course of obtaining clear and marketable 
title, free from all encumbrances, including for certain properties under litigation.

 

Amount in Rupees

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)
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Amount in Rupees

As at 
31-Mar-12

As at 
31-Mar-11

(a)  Loans and advances include private companies/
firms(including AOP) in which a director of the 
Company is Director/partner/member

i.  Loan and advances to related parties

Nitesh Indiranagar Retail Private Limited 110,270  12,238,190 

Nitesh Housing Developers Private Limited  -  33,748,380 

Southern Hills Developers Private Limited (formerly Nitesh 
Estates Projects Private Limited) 62,210,740  77,685,637 

Nitesh  Urban Development Private Limited (formerly Nitesh Boat Club 
Development Private Limited) 38,231,617  3,303,778 

Nitesh Estates - Whitefield  -  53,616,386 

Kakanad Enterprises Private Limited (formerly Nitesh Kochi Projects & 
Developers Private Limited)  26,152,079  - 

ii.  Security deposit

Nitesh Infrastructure and Construction 17,690,475  17,690,475 

iii.  Advance against property

Nisco Ventures Private Limited 40,762,955  40,762,955 

iv.  Share application money pending allotment 

Nitesh Indiranagar Retail Private Limited  - 1,369,622,764

Nitesh Housing Developers Private Limited  830,647,828 906,436,478

Kakanad Enterprises Private Limited (formerly Nitesh Kochi Projects & 
Developers Private Limited) - 11,585,000

(b) Loans and advances to related parties are as disclosed
       in note (a) above

(c ) Details of Share application money pending allotment
       are as under

Nitesh Indiranagar Retail Private Limited  -  1,369,622,764 

Nitesh Housing Developers Private Limited  830,647,828  906,436,478 

Kakanad Enterprises Private Limited (formerly Nitesh Kochi Projects & 
Developers Private Limited) - 11,585,000

Sagar Nitesh Projects Private Limited [(Also, refer note 43)]  50,000,000  50,000,000 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)
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Amount in Rupees
15.  Trade receivable Non-current Current

31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11
Unsecured, considered good
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date 
they are due for payment

 -  - 36,616,150  35,330,059 

Other receivables -  -  331,880,479  497,863,531 
- - 368,496,629 533,193,590

Trade receivables include :
As at 

31-Mar-12
As at 

31-Mar-11
Due from the Managing Director  -  444,706 
Due from a Non Executive Director  -  67,738 
Due from Nitesh Residency Hotels Private Limited in which 
the Company’s Managing Director is a Managing Director 79,757,194 13,789,413

Amount in Rupees
16. Other assets Non-current Current

31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11
Unbilled revenue  -  -  99,548,989  54,409,102 
Interest accrued on bank deposits  -  -  323,246  592,816 
Non current bank balances  2,435,817  3,050,000  -  - 

2,435,817 3,050,000 99,872,235 55,001,918

Amount in Rupees
17. Current Investments As at 

31-Mar-12
As at 

31-Mar-11(valued at lower of cost and fair value)

Investments in mutual funds (unquoted) -  1,038,605 
Nil (Previous year: 103,842.42) units of Rs. 10 each in  
Baroda Pioneer PSU Bond Fund

-  198,549 

Nil (Previous year: 19,843.04) units of Rs. 10 each in  
SBI SHF Short Term Fund - 1,237,154
Aggregate  amount  of  unquoted  investments  -  1,237,154 

Amount in Rupees
18. Inventories Non-current Current

31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11
(valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Land - -  307,388,948  193,090,461 
Work in progress - -  327,389,168  153,551,645 

- - 634,778,116 346,642,106

Amount in Rupees
19. Cash and bank balances Non-current Current

31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
– On current accounts  -  -  22,231,560  9,848,171 
– On deposit accounts with original maturity less than 3 months                            -  -  11,800,000  - 
Cash on hand  -  -  550,237  67,864 

 -  -  34,581,797  9,916,035 
Other bank balances
– Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months  1,310,817  1,050,000  -  - 
– Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months but 
less than 12 months  -  -  2,030,000  1,431,943 
Margin money deposit  1,125,000  2,000,000  -  - 

 2,435,817  3,050,000  36,611,797  11,347,978 
Amount disclosed under non-current assets (2,435,817) (3,050,000)  -  - 

- - 36,611,797 11,347,978

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)
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Amount in Rupees

Year ended 
31-Mar-12

Year ended 
31-Mar-11

20.  Revenue from operations

Income from property development  327,268,426 134,208,047

Income from sale of developed property (apartment)  - 120,000,000

Income from contractual activities  569,806,001 705,355,465

Other operating income

      Share of profit from investment in association of persons (post-tax)  9,101,461  17,571,481 

 906,175,888  977,134,993 

Less: Sales returns:  
Sale of development rights [also refer note 29(d)] 115,862,027 -

790,313,861 977,134,993

21.  Other income

Interest on:

 - Bank deposits 472,243 3,898,289

 - Others  - 148,831

Share of  profit on sale of Transferable Development Rights (‘TDR’)  - 52,511,301

Compensation received on cancelation of TDR Contract  - 10,563,869

Dividend income from current investments in mutual funds units  47,064 38,734,787

Other non operating income [net of expenses Rs.Nil (Previous year:Rs.Nil)] 655,113 948,447

1,174,420 106,805,524

22.  Cost of material consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year  -  - 

Add: Purchases  18,787,253 132,037,696

 18,787,253  132,037,696 

Less: Inventory at the end of the year - -

18,787,252.99 132,037,696

Note: All the materials have been indigenously purchased

23.  (Increase)/decrease in inventories

Opening work in progress 346,642,106 193,090,461

Less: Closing work in progress 634,778,116 346,642,106

(288,136,010) (153,551,645)

24.  Employee benefits expenses

Salaries, wages and bonus  112,984,609  140,835,364 

Contribution to provident and other funds  1,414,980  1,496,807 

Staff welfare expenses  1,627,629  1,459,927 

Less: Reimbursement of expenses from a related party  -  (4,958,995)

116,027,218 138,833,103

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)

Year ended 
31-Mar-12

Year ended 
31-Mar-11

25.  Other expenses
Power and fuel  3,195,760  4,304,669 
Rent  20,468,998  16,642,147 
Repairs and maintenance - others  7,986,865  9,483,115 
Office maintenance expenses  6,166,859  8,589,823 
Insurance charges  3,498,446  4,653,683 
Rates and taxes [including project approval costs of Rs.Nil (Previous year: 

Rs.18,905,710)]
 1,082,045 19,433,311

Professional and consultancy charges  24,649,605  13,881,249 
Architect and other fees  109,649,859  13,553,236 
Payment to auditor (Refer details below)  3,555,842  2,830,062 
Advertising and sales promotion  69,954,243  53,020,678 
Travelling and conveyance  9,902,375  10,613,363 
Lease rent - vehicles  1,543,793  2,731,516 
Communication expenses  1,673,668  2,158,358 
Printing, postage and stationery  3,870,015  4,315,559 
Recruitment expenses  -  3,478,998 
Director Sitting fees  820,000  620,000 
Foreign exchange loss (net)  652,697  - 
Donations  -  625,000 
Miscellaneous  expenses  2,370,201  9,129,593 
Less: Reimbursement of expenses from a related party  -  (1,643,068)

271,041,271 178,421,292
Payment to auditor
As auditor:
 - Audit fee  1,500,000  1,500,000 
 - Fees for limited reviews  1,200,000  1,200,000 
 - Other matters  650,000  - 
Reimbursement of expenses [excluding service tax of  Rs.366,252 (Previous year:
Rs.291,496)]

 205,842  130,062 

3,555,842 2,830,062
26. Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation of tangible assets  10,380,339  5,672,134 
Amortization of intangible assets  7,751,928  1,080,303 

 18,132,267  6,752,437 
Less: Reimbursement of expenses from a related party  - (185,334)

18,132,267 6,567,103
27.  Finance costs

Interest and other charges 
 - On loans  63,671,131  55,122,816 
 - Others  715,753  901,233 
Bank charges  1,437,921  879,706 

65,824,805 56,903,755
28. Segment reporting

 The Company is engaged in the business of real estate development in India. Since, the Company’s business activity primarily 
falls within a single business and geographical segment, no further disclosures are required, other than those already given in 
the financial statements.

Amount in Rupees
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)

29. Related party information  

 a) List of Related parties

Key managerial personnel (‘KMP’) Mr. Nitesh Shetty [Managing Director]
Mr. L. S. Vaidyanathan [Executive Director]

Subsidiary companies Nitesh Indiranagar Retail Private Limited
Nitesh Housing Developers Private Limited
Nitesh Urban Development Private Limited 
(formerly Nitesh Boat Club Development Private Limited)
Kakanad Enterprises Private Limited
(formerly Nitesh Kochi Projects & Developers Private Limited)
Nitesh Property Management Private Limited

Associate company Nitesh Residency Hotels Private Limited

Joint venture enterprise Nitesh Estates – Whitefield [Association of persons]

Enterprises owned or significantly 
influenced by KMP

Globosport India Private Limited
Lob Media Private Limited
Madison Developers Private Limited
Nisco Ventures Private Limited
Nitesh Agrico Private Limited
Nitesh Airways Private Limited
Winter Lands Developers Private Limited
(formerly Nitesh Devanahalli Township Private Limited)
Southern Hills Developers Private Limited
(formerly Nitesh Estates Projects Private Limited)
Nitesh Energy Private Limited
Nitesh Healthcare Private Limited
Nitesh Hospitals Private Limited
Nitesh Industries Private Limited
Nitesh Infrastructure Private Limited
Nitesh Land Holdings Private Limited
Nitesh Media Private Limited
Nitesh Mylapore Developers Private Limited
Nitesh Pharmacy Private Limited
Nitesh Publishers Private Limited
Nitstone Environment Private Limited
Nitstone Waste Management Private Limited
Nitesh Telecom Private Limited
Nitesh Warehousing Private Limited
Nitesh Property Management Private Limited
Serve & Volley Holdings Private Limited
Grass Outdoor Media Private Limited 
Serve & Volley Outdoor Advertising Private Limited
Serve & Volley Signages Private Limited
Courtyard Constructions Private Limited
Hampton Investments Private Limited
Nitesh Healthcare
Richmond Trading Enterprises
Nitesh Infrastructure and Construction 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)

 b) Transactions with Related parties Amount in Rupees

Year ended 
31-Mar-12

Year ended 
31-Mar-11

Income from contractual activities
Nitesh Residency Hotels Private Limited 318,756,077 301,741,110
Nitesh Estates – Whitefield (refer note f below) 239,529,795 311,263,080
Nitesh Infrastructure and Constructions 11,478,927 4,000,000
Mr. L. S. Vaidyanathan 6,960,229 -
Mr. Nitesh Shetty - 660,646
Total 576,725,028 617,664,836

Sales returns - Sale of development rights 
Southern Hills Developers Private Limited
(refer note d below) 115,862,027 -

Total 115,862,027 -

Share of profit from investment in association of persons (post-
tax)
Nitesh Estates – Whitefield 9,101,461  17,571,481 
Total 9,101,461 17,571,481 

Purchase of developed property (apartment)
Southern Hills Developers Private Limited  
(refer note a below) - 28,400,000

Total - 28,400,000

Sub-contracting charges
Nisco Ventures Private Limited - 29,298,930
Total - 29,298,930

Rent and other charges paid 
Nitesh Infrastructure and Construction 18,774,716 24,718,374
Nitesh Property Management Private Limited 479,583 -
Total 19,254,299 24,718,374

Advertising and sales promotion expenses
Grass Outdoor Media Private Limited - 4,118,381
Serve & Volley Outdoor Advertising Private Limited 16,285,967 6,287,197
Total 16,285,967 10,405,578

Expenses incurred on behalf of other companies 
Southern Hills Developers Private Limited 
(refer note b below) - 7,750,203

Nitesh Housing Developers Private Limited - 33,693,593
Nitesh Indiranagar Retail Private Limited - 502,637
Total - 41,946,433

Remuneration to KMP
Mr. Nitesh Shetty (Refer note e below) 12,293,720 12,293,720
Mr. L.S.Vaidyanathan 11,700,000 7,209,360

Total 23,993,720 19,503,080
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b) Transactions with Related parties (Continued)
     Amount in Rupees

Year ended 
31-Mar-12

Year ended 
31-Mar-11

Investments made 

Nitesh Residency Hotels Private Limited 
(refer note c below) 195,000,000 130,000,000

Kakanad Enterprises Private Limited - 100,000

Nitesh Urban Development Private Limited 236,641,000 51,000

Nitesh Property Management Private Limited - 100,000

Total 431,641,000 130,251,000

Allotment of equity shares out of share application money given 
in earlier years

Nitesh Indiranagar Retail Private Limited 1,208,800,000 -

Total 1,208,800,000 -

Share Application money given/(refunded)

Nitesh Indiranagar Retail Private Limited (160,822,764) 1,239,802,583

Nitesh Housing Developers Private Limited 
(refer note 37 below) (75,788,650) 906,436,478

Kakanad Enterprises Private Limited (11,585,000) -

Total (248,196,414) 2,146,239,061

Security Deposits given/(refunded)

Nitesh Infrastructure and Construction - 8,652,600

Total - 8,652,600

Short term borrowings repaid

Mr. Nitesh Shetty - 25,865,000

Total - 25,865,000

Share issue expenses

Grass Outdoor Media Private Limited - 19,023,807

Serve & Volley Outdoor Advertising Private Limited - 21,100,390

Total - 40,124,197

Assignment of real estate projects received

Southern Hills Developers Private Limited - 57,974,609

Total - 57,974,609

Guarantees given

Nitesh Urban Development Private Limited 400,000,000 -

Total 400,000,000 -

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)
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b) Transactions with Related parties (continued)    Amount in Rupees

Year ended 
31-Mar-12

Year ended 
31-Mar-11

Loan and advances to related parties given/(repaid)
Nitesh Housing Developers Private Limited - 69,927,522

Nitesh Estates – Whitefield - 69,795,266

Southern Hills Developers Private Limited - 1,482,177

Nitesh Indiranagar Retail Private Limited (12,127,920) -

Nitesh Urban Development Private Limited 34,927,839  1,020,300

Nitesh Housing Developers Private Limited (33,647,137) (54,604,512)

Nitesh Estates – Whitefield (53,616,386)   (41,394,703)

Nitesh Urban Development Private Limited - (985,255)

Southern Hills Developers Private Limited (15,474,897) (12,281,485)

c) Balances outstanding with Related parties Amount in Rupees 

As at
31-Mar-12

As at
31-Mar-11

Trade receivables
Nitesh Estates – Whitefield 139,551,858 311,608,477
Nitesh Residency Hotels Private Limited 79,757,194 13,789,413
Nitesh Infrastructure and Constructions 5,030,000 5,030,000
Mr. Nitesh Shetty - 444,706
Total 224,339,052 330,872,596

Loans and advances to related parties
Nitesh Housing Developers Private Limited - 33,748,380
Nitesh Estates –Whitefield - 53,616,386
Nitesh Urban Development Private Limited 38,231,617  3,303,778
Kakanad Enterprises Private Limited 26,152,079 -
Southern Hills Developers Private Limited 62,210,740 77,685,637
Nitesh Indiranagar Retail Private Limited 110,270 12,238,190
Total 126,704,706 180,592,371

Advance against property
Nisco Ventures Private Limited 40,762,955 40,762,955
Total 40,762,955 40,762,955

Security Deposits
Nitesh Infrastructure and Construction 17,690,475 17,690,475
Total 17,690,475 17,690,475

Trade payables
Nisco Ventures Private Limited 1,290,927 1,410,566
Nitesh Infrastructure and Construction 1,450,072 1,942,346
Grass Outdoor Media Private Limited 2,765,040 2,765,040
Serve & Volley Outdoor Advertising Private Limited 2,639,539 784,619
Southern Hills Developers Private Limited - 24,555
Total 8,145,578 6,927,126

Advance from customers
Nitesh Residency Hotels Private Limited 40,000,000 59,275,187
Nitesh Property Management Private Limited 3,269,441   -
Total 43,269,441 59,275,187

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)
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As at
31-Mar-12

As at
31-Mar-11

Other current liabilities

Nitesh Estates – Whitefield - 523,368

Total - 523,368

Guarantees outstanding

Nitesh Housing Developers Private Limited 
(refer note 37 below)

620,000,000 620,000,000

Nitesh Urban Development Private Limited 400,000,000 -

Total 1,020,000,000 620,000,000

  Notes: 

 a. On June 1, 2010, the Company purchased a developed property (apartment) from Southern Hills Developers Private Limited 
(‘SHDPL’) for a consideration of Rs. 28,400,000 and sold the same to a third party for a consideration of Rs. 60,000,000 on 
June 15, 2010. The Company incurred other incidental costs of Rs. 2,062,885 towards purchase of the said apartment.

 b. Pursuant to the Share Subscription Agreement (‘SSA’) entered into between AMIF I Limited (‘Investors’), Pushpalatha V. 
Shetty, Nitesh Shetty, Nitesh Industries Private Limited and the Company, common costs i.e. the salaries, general and 
administrative and selling overheads incurred by the Company are being shared by SHDPL and the Company in the ratio 
of their project expenses. 

  Accordingly, the Company has crossed charged SHDPL expenses amounting to Rs. Nil (Previous year: Rs. 6,787,397). 
Although, the SSA has been terminated effective October 9, 2009, the Company and SHDPL continued to share common 
costs in the ratio of their project expenses up to June 30, 2010.

 c. The Company has invested a sum of Rs. 605,805,790 (Previous year: Rs. 410,805,790) towards 30,680,579  (Previous year: 
29,120,579) Class A equity shares of Nitesh Residency Hotels Private Limited (‘NRHPL’). The aforesaid investment has certain 
transfer restrictions (including consent of another investor) under the Shareholders’ Agreement entered into with the other 
investors in NRHPL. As part of the loan arrangement entered into by NRHPL for funding the hotel project, the Company 
has provided an undertaking to such lenders not to divest its shares in NRHPL. The aforesaid Class A shares have similar 
voting rights to the Class B shares held by another investor but have different dividend rights in terms of the shareholders 
agreement. Effective October 30, 2009, NRHPL became an associate of the Company. The Company has a commitment to 
invest additional share capital in NRHPL along with the other investors. The Company’s share of such additional investment 
as at March 31, 2012 is estimated to be Rs.135,000,000 (Previous year: Rs. 330,000,000).

 d. During the year ended March 31, 2009, the Company sold 25% of its development rights under a joint venture to Southern 
Hills Developers Private Limited (formerly Nitesh Estates Projects Private Limited), a company owned by key managerial 
personnel (‘SHDPL’) for a consideration of Rs.270,000,000. The Company had incurred cost of Rs. 115,862,027 towards land 
and other development costs as at the date of sale and had accordingly recognized a profit of Rs. 154,137,973. 

  During the year, the Company has bought back the aforesaid development rights from SHDPL for a consideration of 
Rs.115,862,027 and the same has been recorded as sales return. Accordingly, revenue from operations for the year is lower 
by Rs.115,862,027 with the corresponding impact on (increase) /decrease in inventories. The management is of the view 
that the aforesaid transaction is based on the contract entered by the parties, having no impact on the loss for the year 
ended March 31, 2012.

 e. The Company has paid remuneration to key managerial personnel, for which an application has been made to the Central 
Government for its approval. Management is reasonably confident of obtaining the approval.

 f. Pursuant to a retrospective amendment to the billing arrangement between the Company and Nitesh Estates –Whitefield 
on March 31, 2012, the Company has recognized revenue of Rs.19,634,967 relating to period prior to April 1, 2011.

 g. Refer note 5 and 7 for loans personally guaranteed by certain directors of the Company.
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���

�������	
���
��������������

30. Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

 i. Contingent Liabilities

  a. Claims not acknowledged as debts in respect of income tax – Rs.35,416,412 (Previous year: Rs. 30,275,706) 

  b. Guarantees given

    i. Guarantee in respect of debentures as discussed in Note 37 below
    ii. Other guarantees – Rs.431,175,000 (Previous year: Rs.14,075,000).

  c. Also, refer note 39 and note 43. 

 ii. Commitments

  a. The estimated amount of contracts, net of advances remaining to be executed on capital account is Rs. 1,920,428 
(Previous year: Rs.1,790,000).

  b. As at March 31, 2012, the Company has given Rs.1,038,742,815 (Previous year: Rs.838,695,080) as advances/deposits 
for joint development/purchase of land. Under the arrangements executed with the land owners/intermediary parties, 
the Company is required to make further payments under the arrangements based on the terms/ milestones stipulated 
thereunder. Further, in respect of joint development arrangements the Company is also required to give share in area/
revenue from such development in exchange of undivided share in land as stipulated under the arrangements.

  c. Also, refer note 29(c) and note 43.

31. Details of Construction contracts in progress
Amount in Rupees

 Particulars Year ended 
31-Mar-12

Year ended 
31-Mar-11

Contract revenue recognized as revenue for the year 891,074,427 831,494,924
Aggregate amount of contract costs incurred and 
recognized profits (less recognized losses) up to the 
reporting date for all the contracts in progress

2,783,282,510 1,892,208,083

The amount of customer advances outstanding for 
contracts in progress as at the reporting date 416,861,814 219,797,464

The amount of retention due from customers for 
contracts in progress as at the reporting date 15,020,632 3,986,343

32. Loans and advances in the nature of loans given to subsidiaries and associates and firms/companies in which directors are 
interested 

Name  of the party

Closing balance 
(in Rs.)

Maximum balance outstanding
(in Rs.)

As at
31-Mar-12

As at
31-Mar-11

Year ended
31-Mar-12

Year ended
31-Mar-11

Nitesh Indiranagar Retail 
Private Limited

110,270 12,238,190 12,238,190 12,238,190

Nitesh Mylapore Developers 
Private Limited

- - - 10,910,946

Nitesh Infrastructure & 
Construction

- - - 4,500,000

Total 110,270 12,238,190 12,238,190 27,649,136

 Note: There are no specific repayment covenants with respect to the repayment of aforesaid advances.

33. Employee benefits 
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets 
gratuity on departure at 15 days basic salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service subject to maximum of 
Rs.1,000,000. The scheme is unfunded and hence the disclosures with respect to plan assets as per AS-15(R) are not applicable 
to the Company. 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)
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The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the 
funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for gratuity benefit.

Amount in Rupees

Net employee benefit expense 
(recognised in Employee Cost)

Year ended 
31-Mar-12

Year ended 
31-Mar-11

Current service cost 2,231,750 1,430,889
Interest cost on benefit obligation 545,798 357,790
Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognized (3,178,210) (147,463)
Past service cost 157,614 157,614
Net benefit expense (243,048) 1,798,830

Amount in Rupees

Details of provision for gratuity As at
31-Mar-12

As at
31-Mar-11

Defined benefit obligation 4,163,524 4,622,036
Less: Unrecognised past service cost (157,615) (315,229)
Plan liability 4,005,909 4,306,807

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Amount in Rupees

As at
31-Mar-12

As at
31-Mar-11

Opening defined benefit obligation 4,622,036 2,980,820
Interest cost 545,798 357,790
Current service cost 2,231,750 1,430,889
Benefits paid (57,850) -
Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligation (3,178,210) (147,463)
Closing defined benefit obligation 4,163,524 4,622,036

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligations are given below:

As at
31-Mar-12

As at
31-Mar-11

Discount rate 8.55% 8.05%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and 
other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Amounts for the current and preceding years are as follows:
      Amount in Rupees

As at
31-Mar-12

As at
31-Mar-11

As at
31-Mar-10

As at
31-Mar-09

As at
31-Mar-08

Defined benefit obligation 4,163,524 4,622,036 2,980,820 1,673,113 2,215,663
Plan assets - - - - -
Surplus / (Deficit) (4,163,524) (4,622,036) (2,980,820) (1,673,113) (2,215,663)
Experience adjustments on 
plan liabilities

(2,967,790) (197,656) (185,121) (2,180,736) (82,768)

34. Leases

The Company has taken office, vehicles and other facilities under cancelable and non-cancelable operating leases, which 
are renewable on a periodic basis. The total lease expense for such leases recognised in the statement of  profit and loss is 
Rs.22,012,791 (Previous year: Rs.19,373,663). The future minimum lease payments for non-cancelable operating leases are as 
follows:

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)
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 Amount in Rupees

Particulars As at
31-Mar-12

As at
31-Mar-11

Not later than one year - 570,000

More than one year and less than five years - 440,000

Total - 1,010,000

35. Interest in Joint Venture

The Company has a 24% share in the profits and losses of Nitesh Estates - Whitefield (Association of persons), formed in India, 
a jointly controlled entity, which is engaged in real estate development. The Company’s proportionate share of the assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses of the jointly controlled entity are as follows:
         Amount in Rupees

Particulars
As at and for the 

Year ended 
31-Mar-12

As at and for the 
Year ended 
31-Mar-11

Assets 218,664,948 393,458,773

Liabilities 113,154,336 297,015,202

Revenue 54,317,072 107,321,537 

Expenses 45,215,611 89,750,057 
Net Profit 9,101,461 17,571,481 

Note: The capital expenditure and contingent liability as at and for the year ended March 31, 2012 is Rs. Nil  
(Previous year: Rs. Nil).

36. Expenditure in foreign currency (on accrual basis)
    Amount in Rupees

Particulars Year ended 
31-Mar-12

Year ended 
31-Mar-11

Share issue expenses - 20,936,606

Architect and other fees 92,106,149 -

Professional and consultancy charges - 1,198,100

Travelling and conveyance - 492,171

37. On September 24, 2009, NEL invested a sum of Rs.49,999,000 in the equity shares (99.9%) of Nitesh Housing Developers 
Private Limited (‘NHDPL’), a subsidiary of NEL. Subsequently, on September 25, 2009, NEL sold 10.1% of its investment in 
NHDPL to another party (‘the Buyer’). As at March 31, 2012, NEL holds 89.9% of the equity share capital of NHDPL.

On September 25, 2009, NEL, NHDPL, the Buyer and Mr. Nitesh Shetty have entered into an agreement whereby NHDPL would 
issue and allot to the Buyer, 6,200,000 Debentures of Rs.100 each aggregating to Rs.620,000,000. The Debentures and interest 
thereon are secured by way of pledge of the entire shareholding of NEL in NHDPL and a part of shareholding of Mr. Nitesh 
Shetty in NEL, equitable mortgage of project specific properties and hypothecation of receivables of such projects and further 
secured by corporate guarantee of NEL and personal guarantee of Mr. Nitesh Shetty. Further, the Buyer has a put option to 
require Mr. Nitesh Shetty to buy the 505,000 shares purchased from NEL under the terms of the agreement. The Buyer has 
the option to exercise conversion of such Debentures into preference shares of NHDPL after August 31, 2010 or secure the 
redemption of the same by NHDPL anytime on or after September 5, 2010 and no later than September 20, 2012. 

Further, NHDPL had the option to redeem the Debentures to the extent of Rs.500,000,000 on or before March 31, 2011, which 
has not been exercised by NHDPL. NHDPL had the obligation to redeem all the Debentures on September 20, 2012. The 
Debentures are redeemable at a price that shall entitle the Buyer to a pre-tax IRR of 18% p.a. on the subscribed amount if on 
such date of redemption NEL has not completed its initial public offering (‘IPO’), or a post-tax IRR of 25% p.a., if on the date of 
redemption NEL has completed its IPO. NHDPL has issued Debentures amounting to Rs.620,000,000 as at March 31, 2012.
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On May 15, 2010, certain terms of Debenture agreement have been amended and the Debentures have been converted from 
‘Redeemable Optionally Convertible Debentures’ to ‘Compulsorily Convertible Debentures’, which will be later converted to 
‘Redeemable Non-convertible Preference Shares’ anytime on or after September 5, 2010 and no later than September 20, 
2012. Such Redeemable Non-convertible Preference Shares are to be redeemed at an IRR to the Buyer as discussed above. 
As per the aforesaid terms, the debentures are convertible at par into preference shares and the premium on redemption of 
preference shares thereon in the opinion of the management, will be out of utilization of securities premium arising from fresh 
issue of equity shares to existing shareholders of NHDPL.

38. Inventories as at March 31, 2012 includes Land amounting to Rs.307,388,948 (Previous year: Rs.193,090,461) comprising 
cost of land held by the Company and other related costs incurred thereto. The land is to be developed under a joint 
arrangement with another party (‘the Other Party’) along with the adjoining parcel of land owned by the Other Party. As per 
the joint arrangement, the Company was required to commence the project by May 18, 2010, failing which the Other Party is 
entitled to terminate the joint arrangement. The Other Party has not exercised the right to terminate and the Company is in 
negotiation with the Other Party on various matters relating to structuring the arrangement, including revised timelines for 
commencement of the project. The Company is reasonably confident of finalizing the arrangement with the Other Party.

39. Advance against property as at March 31, 2012 includes Rs.215,000,000 (Previous year: Rs.215,000,000) paid to an intermediary 
party for purchase of land and consequently, the intermediary party entered into an agreement with the landlord for 
purchase of land. Subsequently, at the request of the Company, the intermediary party assigned its rights and obligations 
under the agreement with the landlord to the Company.  There is no specific confirmation from the landlord in acceptance 
of the aforesaid assignment. The Company continues to deal with the intermediary party on another project. Further, based 
on the advice of the Company’s external legal counsel, the Company is reasonably confident of the enforceability of the 
assignment agreement and has accordingly initiated the legal proceedings with respect to refund of the aforesaid amount 
and is reasonably confident that the legal proceedings would be in favour of the Company. Accordingly, the management is 
of the view that no adjustment is required to be made in respect of the carrying value of the advance against property as at 
March 31, 2012.

40. As at March 31, 2012, the Company has made investment of Rs.2,436,388,828 (including Share application money pending 
allotment of Rs. 830,647,828  in subsidiary companies). The Subsidiary companies have given advances to companies owned/
significantly influenced by key managerial personnel amounting to Rs.828,236,000, towards real estate projects, which are in 
various stages of development/ project set-up. The management is confident of settlement of such advances or achievement 
of profitable operations of such real estate projects in future. Accordingly, management is of the view that no adjustments are 
required to be made to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2012.

41. Initial Public Offer

On April 23, 2010, the Company launched its Initial Public Offer (‘IPO’) of 75,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each for cash at 
a price of Rs.54 each and raised capital of Rs.4,050,000,000. The premium of Rs.44 per share, amounting to Rs.3,300,000,000 
from the allotment has been credited to Securities Premium Account. The Share issue expenses incurred by the Company 
amounting to Rs.313,662,446 have been adjusted against Securities Premium Account. The details of utilization of proceeds 
raised through IPO are as below.

Amount in Rupees

Particulars Objects as per 
Prospectus

Actual
Utilisation

Investment in subsidiaries/associate company 3,034,380,000     2,131,692,135 
Repayment of specified loans 356,900,000        356,900,000 
Repayment of other loans -        551,616,355 
Acquisition of specified joint development rights 210,000,000          30,000,000 
Acquisition of other joint development rights -        282,712,865 
Issue related expenditure 272,830,000        313,662,446 
General corporate purposes 175,890,000        383,416,199 
Total 4,050,000,000 4,050,000,000

Note: Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting held on September 29, 2010, the Company 
obtained the approval/ ratification from the members for deviations in the utilization of the IPO proceeds and delegated the 
powers to the Board of Directors of the Company to utilize any part of the net proceeds for a purpose or purposes other than 
those described in the Prospectus of the Company.
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42. As at March 31, 2012, the Company has an investment of Rs.1,323,900,000 (Previous year: Rs.1,484,722,764) in the equity 
shares/towards share capital of Nitesh Indiranagar Retail Private Limited (‘NIRPL’), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. 
Capital work in progress of NIRPL includes a non-refundable deposit of Rs.855,000,000 (Previous year: Rs.855,000,000) 
paid to the landowner under a Joint Development Agreement (‘JDA’) and other project specific payments amounting to 
Rs.307,982,644 (Previous year: Rs.629,604,666). As per the aforesaid JDA, NIRPL is required to adhere to all the terms of the 
JDA (as amended) including the specified project timelines, failing which the other party is entitled to forfeit the aforesaid 
nonrefundable deposit and not continue with the joint development arrangement. Management is reasonably confident of 
NIRPL adhering to all the terms of the aforesaid JDA including the specified project timelines.

43. The Company has entered into share subscription and shareholders agreement dated October 21, 2007 with Sagar Nitesh 
Projects Private Limited (‘SNPPL’) and its promoters. Pursuant to the agreement, the Company had made an initial payment 
of Rs.50,000,000, towards the Company’s obligation to subscribe upto 20% of the paid up capital of SNPPL amounting to 
Rs.354,125,000 upon fulfillment of certain conditions by the parties to the agreement. The Company, in consultation 
with its legal counsel is of the opinion that there has been a breach in fulfillment of the aforesaid conditions on the part 
of the promoters of SNPPL and accordingly, the Company has initiated arbitration proceedings with respect to refund of 
share application money. Based on the advice of the Company’s external legal counsel, the Company is confident that the 
arbitration proceedings would be in the favour of the Company and the realisable value will be atleast equal to its carrying 
value. Accordingly, the management is of the view that no provision is required to be made in respect of the carrying value of 
the aforesaid share application money as at March 31, 2012.

44. Previous year figures

Till the year ended March 31, 2011, the Company was using pre-revised Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956, for preparation 
and presentation of its financial statements. During the year ended March 31, 2012, the revised Schedule VI notified under the 
Companies Act, 1956, has become applicable to the Company. The Company has reclassified previous year figures to conform 
to this year’s classification.

As per our report of even date.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES 
Firm Registration No.101049W
Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Nitesh Estates Limited

per Adarsh Ranka
Partner
Membership No. 209567

Nitesh Shetty
Managing Director

L.S. Vaidyanathan
Executive Director 

D. Srinivasan
Company Secretary

Venkateshan M.A.
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date  : May 25, 2012 Date  : May 25, 2012
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To
The Board of Directors
Nitesh Estates Limited 

1. We have audited the attached consolidated balance sheet of Nitesh Estates Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries, joint 
ventures and associate (collectively referred to as “the Group”), as at March 31, 2012, and also the consolidated statement of 
profit and loss and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management and have been prepared by the management on the basis 
of separate financial statements and other financial information regarding compo nents. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for 
our opinion.

3. We did not audit the financial statements of five subsidiaries, two joint ventures and one associate company. The financial 
statements of these subsidiaries and joint ventures reflect total assets of Rs.5,097,676,043 as at March 31, 2012, total revenue 
of Rs.745,217,895 and cash inflows of Rs.129,112,969 for the year ended March 31, 2012. The financial statements of associate 
company reflects the Group’s share of total loss of Rs.17,224,358 as at March 31, 2012 and Rs.8,203,884 for the year ended 
March 31, 2012. These financial statements and other financial information of these subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate 
company have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion is based solely on 
the report of other auditors.

4. Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to:

a. Note 39 of the financial statements regarding advance against property amounting to Rs.215,000,000 as at March 31, 
2012 towards purchase of land. The Company has initiated legal proceedings in respect of the aforesaid arrangement. 
Pending the ultimate outcome of the legal proceedings and based on legal advice, no adjustments have been made to 
the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2012.

b. Note 30(d) of the financial statements regarding sales returns from a company owned by a key managerial personnel of 
the Company more fully described therein, having no impact on the profit for the year ended March 31, 2012.

5. The Group has tax losses during the year ended March 31, 2012 and has deferred tax assets of Rs.56,763,170 as at March 31, 2012 
(March 31, 2011-Rs.13,101,834). The Group has recognized deferred tax assets on the basis of future taxable income and ultimate 
outcome of certain ongoing and proposed projects, which in our opinion, does not meet the requirement of virtual certainty for 
recognition of deferred tax asset as required under Accounting Standard 22 “Accounting for Taxes on Income”, notified pursuant 
to the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended). This had caused us to qualify our audit opinion on the 
financial statements relating to the preceding year. Had such deferred tax assets not been recognized, profit for the year would 
have been lower by Rs.56,763,170 (March 31, 2011 - Rs.13,101,834). Further, deferred tax assets and reserves and surplus as at 
March 31, 2012 would have been lower by Rs.56,763,170 (March 31, 2011-Rs.13,101,834).
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6. As of March 31, 2012, the component entities of the Group have advanced amounts towards real estate projects. Based on 
the audited financial statements of the component entities as made available to us by the Company, it is observed that the 
component entities have given advances amounting to Rs. 828,236,000 to certain companies owned by or significantly influenced 
by key managerial personnel, towards real estate projects, which are in various stages of development/ project set-up. Pending 
settlement of such advances or achievement of profitable operations of such real estate projects in future as the case may be, 
we are unable to comment on the matter and the consequential effect, if any, on the financial statements for the year ended 
March 31, 2012.

7. Based on our audit and on consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other 
financial information of the components, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us 
except for the effect of the matter stated in paragraph 6 above and the possible effect of the matter stated in paragraph 7 above, 
we are of the opinion that the attached consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India:

a. in the case of the consolidated balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2012;

b. in the case of the consolidated statement of profit and loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and

c. in the case of the consolidated cash flow statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

For S. R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES
Firm Registration No.101049W  
Chartered Accountants  

per Adarsh Ranka
Partner   
Membership No.: 209567 
    
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2012
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date 

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Nitesh Estates LimitedFirm Registration No.101049W

Chartered Accountants

per Adarsh Ranka Nitesh Shetty L.S. Vaidyanathan
Partner                                                  Managing Director Executive Director
Membership No.: 209567

D. Srinivasan Venkateshan M.A.
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Place :  Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date :  May 25, 2012 Date : May 25, 2012

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2012
 Amount in Rupees 

Notes As at 
31-Mar-12

As at          
31-Mar-11

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 3  1,458,321,000  1,458,321,000 
Reserves and surplus 4  3,171,414,861  3,170,528,521 

 4,629,735,861  4,628,849,521 

Minority interest  25,429,265  12,219,624 

Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 5  126,769,883  622,343,655 
Long-term provisions 6  6,701,828  4,159,427 
Other long-term liabilities 7  43,306,571  - 

 176,778,282  626,503,082 
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 8  499,970,028  168,185,400 
Trade Payables 9  508,201,494  360,623,686 
Other current liabilities 10  2,109,556,200  467,334,525 
Short-term provisions 6  68,648,543  64,980,936 

 3,186,376,265  1,061,124,547 
TOTAL  8,018,319,673  6,328,696,774 

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Fixed assets
    Tangible assets 11  34,262,193  40,433,427 
    Intangible assets 12  32,401,136  3,576,018 
    Capital work-in-progress 42  390,338,112  296,104,666 
    Intangible assets under development  -  20,800,033 
Goodwill on consolidation  81,195,858  - 
Non-current investments 13  588,638,632  401,842,516 
Deferred tax asset (net) 14  56,763,170  13,101,834 
Long-term loans and advances 15  3,146,525,184  2,976,486,255 
Other non-current assets 17  2,435,817  3,050,000 

 4,332,560,102  3,755,394,749 
Current assets
Current investments 18  100,000  1,458,793 
Inventories 19  1,103,219,595  624,120,203 
Trade receivables 16  486,153,312  590,616,412 
Cash and bank balances 20  201,970,494  67,230,576 
Short-term loans and advances 15  1,501,589,506  1,145,149,209 
Other current assets 17  392,726,664  144,726,832 

 3,685,759,571  2,573,302,025 
TOTAL  8,018,319,673  6,328,696,774 

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
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Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2012
 Amount in Rupees 

Notes Year ended 
31-Mar-12

Year ended 
31-Mar-11

Income
Revenue from operations 21  1,162,252,445  1,241,046,626 
Other income 22  135,861,058  199,487,834 

Total revenue (I)  1,298,113,503  1,440,534,460 
Expenses
Land purchase cost 30(d)  8,290,863  189,020,322 
Cost of material consumed 23  31,005,926  132,037,696 
Sub-contracting charges  1,038,149,696  644,624,198 
Purchase of developed property (apartment)  -  70,562,885 
Cost of villa plots  17,221,391  80,485,888 
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 24  (479,099,392)  (344,513,524)
Employee benefits expense 25  164,347,784  139,453,103 
Other expenses 26  378,378,938  306,663,338 

Total Expenses (II)  1,158,295,206  1,218,333,906 
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) (I)-(II)  139,818,297  222,200,554 
Depreciation and amortization expense 27  18,346,851  6,599,809 
Finance costs 28  72,169,876  58,794,117 
Profit before tax  49,301,570  156,806,628 
Tax expenses
Current tax  68,427,136  42,700,000 
Deferred tax charge/(credit)  (43,681,812)  (7,825,320)
Total tax expense  24,745,324  34,874,680 
Profit for the year  24,556,246  121,931,948 
Less: Share in loss of Associate  8,203,884  5,587,974 
Less: Transfer to Minority Interest  13,209,641  7,119,624 
Net profit for the year  3,142,721  109,224,350 

Earnings per equity share [nominal value of share Rs.10 (Previous year : Rs.10)]
Basic and Diluted  0.02 0.79
Weighted average number of shares used in computing basic and diluted earnings per share  145,832,100  137,612,922 
Net profit used in computing basic and diluted earnings per share  3,142,721  109,224,350 

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date 

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Nitesh Estates LimitedFirm Registration No.101049W

Chartered Accountants

per Adarsh Ranka Nitesh Shetty L.S. Vaidyanathan
Partner                                                  Managing Director Executive Director
Membership No.: 209567

D. Srinivasan Venkateshan M.A.
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Place :  Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date :  May 25, 2012 Date : May 25, 2012
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2012 
Amount in Rupees

Year ended 
31-Mar-12

Year ended 
31-Mar-11

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax  49,301,570  156,806,628 

Non-cash adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

    Depreciation / amortisation  18,346,851  6,599,809 

Finance costs  70,504,265  57,754,466 

Interest income  (133,187,727)  (96,082,593)

Dividend income  (58,028)  (38,767,122)

Operating profit/ (loss) before working capital changes  4,906,931  86,311,188 

Movements in working capital:

Increase / (decrease) in trade payables  147,577,808  115,887,235 

Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities  1,029,138,686  155,784,323 

Increase / (decrease) in provisions  (32,889,683)  3,985,676 

(Increase) / decrease in inventories  (479,099,392)  (318,361,446)

(Increase) / decrease in trade receivables  104,463,100  (334,821,108)

(Increase) / decrease in loans and advances  (856,248,755)  (852,029,981)

(Increase) / decrease in other current assets  (231,855,273)  (42,782,168)

Cash (used in) / generated from operations  (314,006,578)  (1,186,026,281)

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)  (21,140,016)  (43,294,572)

Net cash (used in)/ generated from operating activities - (A)  (335,146,594)  (1,229,320,853)

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of fixed assets including intangible assets,
Intangible assets under development and capital advances  234,154,184  (891,252,283)

Purchase of investment in associate  (195,000,000)  (130,000,000)

Purchase of investment in joint venture  (80,200,000)  - 

Purchase of current investments - mutual fund units  -  (10,312,800,284)

Proceeds from sale of current investments - mutual fund units  1,416,821  10,351,344,478 

Investment in fixed deposit with maturity of more than 3 months  (6,593,057)  (1,436,943)

Interest received  117,657,350  3,715,590 

Net cash from/ (used in) investing activities - (B)  71,435,298  (980,429,442)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.) 

Amount in Rupees
Year ended 
31-Mar-12

Year ended 
31-Mar-11

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of shares  -  4,050,000,000 

Payment of share issue expenses  -  (313,662,446)

Repayment of long term borrowings  (573,772)  (1,467,569,580)

Proceeds from long term borrowings  125,000,000  - 

Proceeds from short term borrowings  406,921,428  167,196,184 

Repayment of short term borrowings  (75,136,800)  (37,822,144)

Finance costs paid  (65,796,764)  (198,367,786)

Net cash from/ (used in) financing activities - (C)  390,414,092  2,199,774,228 

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents - (A+B+C)  126,702,796  (9,976,067)

Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year  65,793,633  75,607,794 

Cash inflow due to acquisition of subsidiaries  -  161,906 

Proportionate cash inflow in acquisition of joint venture  1,444,065  - 

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year  193,940,494  65,793,633 

Components of cash and cash equivalents:

Cash on hand  8,372,161  8,844,699 

Balances with scheduled banks:

In Current accounts  173,768,333  56,948,934 

In Deposit accounts  11,800,000  - 

 193,940,494  65,793,633 

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date 

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Nitesh Estates LimitedFirm Registration No.101049W

Chartered Accountants

per Adarsh Ranka Nitesh Shetty L.S. Vaidyanathan
Partner                                                  Managing Director Executive Director
Membership No.: 209567

D. Srinivasan Venkateshan M.A.
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Place :  Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date :  May 25, 2012 Date : May 25, 2012
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012

1. Corporate information

 Nitesh Estates Limited (‘the Company’ or  ‘NEL’  or  ‘the holding company’) was incorporated on February 20, 2004. NEL 
together with its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate are hereinafter collectively referred to as ‘the Group’. The Group is a 
real estate developer engaged in the business of development, sale, management and operation of all or any part of housing 
and hotel projects, commercial premises and other related activities. 

 On April 23, 2010, the Company launched its Initial Public Offer (‘IPO’) of 75,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each for cash at 
a price of Rs.54 each and raised capital of Rs.4,050,000,000. Pursuant to the IPO, the Company’s shares are listed on National 
Stock Exchange and Bombay Stock Exchange effective May 13, 2010.  

2. Basis of preparation

 The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles in India (Indian GAAP). The Group has prepared these consolidated financial statements to comply in all material 
respects with the Accounting Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended). The 
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis. 

 The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Group and are consistent with those used in the previous year, 
except for the change in accounting policy explained below.

 2.1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

  a) Change in accounting policy

   Presentation and disclosure of consolidated financial statements

   During the year ended March 31, 2012, the revised Schedule VI notified under the Companies Act, 1956, has 
become applicable to the Company, for preparation and presentation of its consolidated financial statements. The 
adoption of revised Schedule VI does not impact recognition and measurement principles followed for preparation 
of consolidated financial statements. However, it has significant impact on presentation and disclosures made in 
the consolidated financial statements. The Group has also reclassified the previous year figures in accordance with 
the requirements applicable in the current year.  

  b) Principles of consolidation

    The consolidated financials statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting Standard  (AS) 21 – 
‘Consolidated Financial Statements’, AS 23, ‘Accounting for investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial 
Statements’ and AS 27 – ‘Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures’ notified by Companies (Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended). The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the following basis:

   i) Subsidiary companies are consolidated on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book values of 
the like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses after eliminating all intra-group balances and 
intra-group transactions and also unrealized profits/losses.

   ii) Interest in the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the joint ventures is consolidated using 
proportionate consolidation method. Intra group balances, transactions and unrealized profits/losses are 
eliminated to the extent of the Company’s proportionate share.

   iii) The difference between the cost to the Company of investment in the subsidiaries and joint ventures and 
the proportionate share in the equity of such subsidiaries and joint ventures as at the date of acquisition of 
stake is recognized in the consolidated financial statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve, as the case may 
be. Goodwill arising on consolidation is disclosed under Non-current assets and is not amortised but tested 
for impairment annually.

   iv) Investment in associate is accounted for using the equity method. The excess of cost of investment over the 
proportionate share in equity of the associate as at the date of acquisition of stake is identified as Goodwill 
and included in the carrying value of the investment in the associate. The carrying amount of the investment 
is adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in the share of net assets of the associate. However, 
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the share of losses is accounted for only to the extent of the cost of investment. Subsequent profits of 
such associate are not accounted for unless the accumulated losses (not accounted for by the Group) are 
recouped. The standalone financial statements of associate is used for the purpose of consolidation.

   v. Minority interest in net profits of consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted against 
the income in order to arrive at the net income attributable to the shareholders of the Company. Their share 
of net assets is identified and presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheet separately. Where accumulated 
losses attributable to the minorities are in excess of their equity, in the absence of the contractual obligation 
on the minorities, the same is accounted for by the holding company. 

   vi. As far as possible, the consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for 
like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented, to the extent possible, in the 
same manner as the Holding Company’s standalone financial statements.

   vii. The financial statements of the components used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to the 
same reporting date as that of the Holding Company.

  c) Use of estimates

   The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management 
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets 
and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these 
estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about 
these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

  d) Fixed assets

      i. Tangible fixed assets

      Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost 
comprises the purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable 
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are 
deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

      Subsequent expenditure related to an item of tangible fixed asset is added to its book value only if it increases 
the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All 
other expenses on existing fixed assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and 
cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such 
expenses are incurred. 

      Gains or losses arising from derecognition of tangible fixed assets are measured as the difference between 
the net of disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of 
profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

     ii. Intangible fixed assets

      Intangible fixed assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial 
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. 

      Gains or losses arising from derecognition of intangible fixed assets are measured as the difference between 
the net of disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of 
profit and loss when the asset is derecognized. 

    iii.  Depreciation / amortisation

      Depreciation on assets is provided using written down value method (‘WDV’) at   the rates prescribed under  
Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956, which is also estimated by the management to be the estimated 
useful  lives of the assets.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)
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Schedule XIV Rates (WDV)
Computers 40.00%
Office Equipment 13.91%
Furniture and Fittings 18.10%
Motor Cars 25.89%

      Leasehold improvements are amortised over the remaining primary period of lease upto 10 years or their 
estimated useful life, whichever is shorter, on a straight-line basis. Assets individually costing less than or 
equal to Rs.5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase. 

      Intangible fixed assets - Computer software is amortised using straight line method over a period of 5 years,  
which  is estimated by the management to be the useful life of the asset.

  e)  Impairment of tangible and intangible fixed assets

    The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset  may be impaired. If any 
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s 
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net 
selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset 
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where 
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is 
written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken 
into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

    The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared 
separately for each of the Group’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are  allocated.  These 
budgets  and  forecast  calculations  are  generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long term 
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

    Impairment losses, including  impairment  on  inventories,  are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 
After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful 
life.

  f)  Leases

    Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased asset, 
are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of 
profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

  g)  Investments

     Investments which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on 
which such investments are made are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as 
long term investments. 

    On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and directly 
attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.

    Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis. 
Long-term Investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in the value is made to recognize a 
decline other than temporary in the value of investments.

    On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged 
or credited to the statement of profit and loss.
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  h)  Inventories

    Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct and indirect expenditure, 
which is determined based on specific identification to the construction activity.

    Direct expenditure relating to construction activity is inventorised. Indirect expenditure (including borrowing 
costs) during construction period is inventorised to the extent the expenditure is related to construction or is 
incidental thereto. Other indirect expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction 
period which is neither related to the construction activity nor is incidental thereto is charged to the statement 
of profit and loss. 

    Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

  i)  Revenue recognition

    Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the 
revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is 
recognized:

    Income from contractual activities

    Revenue from fixed price construction contracts is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the 
project at the reporting date. The stage of completion of project is determined by the proportion that contract 
costs incurred for work performed up to the reporting date bear to the estimated total contract costs. When 
estimated contract costs exceed contract revenue, the expected loss is recognized immediately. 

    Revenue from cost plus construction contracts is recognized on the basis of an agreed mark up on costs incurred, 
in accordance with the terms of the agreement entered into by the Group and its customers.

    Revenue from other contractual activities is recognized as activities are performed, on an accrual basis, based on 
arrangements with concerned parties.

    Contract revenue earned in excess of billing has been reflected under “Other Current Assets” and billing in excess 
of contract revenue has been reflected under “Other Current Liabilities” in the balance sheet. 

    Income from property development

    Revenue from real estate under development is recognised upon transfer of all significant risks and rewards 
of ownership of such real estate, as per the terms of the contracts entered into with buyers, which generally 
coincides with the firming of the sales contracts/ agreements, except for contracts where the Group still has 
obligations to perform substantial acts even after the transfer of all significant risks and rewards. In such cases, 
the revenue is recognised on percentage of completion method, when the stage of completion of each project 
reaches a reasonable level of progress. Revenue is recognised in proportion that the contract costs incurred for 
work performed up to the reporting date bear to the estimated total contract costs. Land costs are not included 
for the purpose of computing the percentage of completion.

    Income from sale of developed property

    Revenue from sale of developed property is recognised upon transfer of all significant risks and rewards 
of ownership of such developed property, as per the terms of the contracts entered into with buyers, which 
generally coincides with the firming of the sales contracts/agreements. 

    Income from sale of villa plots

    Revenue from sale of villa plots is recognised upon transfer of all significant risks and rewards of ownership of 
such real estate, as per the terms of the contracts entered into with buyers, which generally coincides with the 
firming of the sales contracts/agreements.
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    Interest income

    Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the 
rate applicable.

  j)  Foreign currency translation

    Initial Recognition

    Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount 
the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

    Conversion

    Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in 
terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the 
transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a 
foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

    Exchange Differences

    Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting such monetary items of the 
Group at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, or reported in previous 
financial statements, are recognized as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.

  k)  Borrowing costs

    Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily 
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the 
respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

  l)  Retirement and other employee benefits

    Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are 
charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. 
There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective trusts.

    Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on 
projected unit credit method made at the reporting date. The gratuity liability is not externally funded. Actuarial 
gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. 

    Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee     
benefit. The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay 
as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

    The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond 12 months, as long-term employee 
benefit for measurement purpose. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for  based on the actuarial 
valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to 
the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Group presents the entire leave as a current liability in 
the balance sheet, since it does not have any unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the 
reporting date.

  m)  Income taxes

    Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to 
be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. The tax rates and 
tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting 
date. Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the 
statement of profit and loss.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)



�.!

�������	
���
��������������

    Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and accounting income 
originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred tax is measured 
using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred income tax 
relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of profit and loss.

    Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for 
deductible timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable 
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. In situations where the Group has 
unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual 
certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realized against future taxable profits.

    At  each  reporting date,  the Group re-assesses unrecognized deferred  tax  assets.  It recognizes unrecognized 
deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that 
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

     The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each  reporting date.  The Group writes-down the 
carrying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as 
the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be 
realized. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as 
the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

    Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred taxes relate to the same taxable 
entity and the same taxation authority.

    Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The 
Group recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the 
Group will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed 
to be carried forward. In the year in which the Group recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax 
Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as “MAT Credit 
Entitlement.” The Group reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the 
asset to the extent the Group does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified 
period.

  n)  Advances/deposits against property

    Advances paid by the Group to the seller/ intermediary toward outright purchase of land is recognized as 
‘Advances against property’ under Loans and Advances during the course of obtaining clear and marketable 
title, free from all encumbrances and transfer of legal title to the Group, whereupon it is transferred to Work in 
progress.

    Deposits paid by the Group to the seller towards right for development of land in exchange of constructed 
area are recognized as deposits under Loans and Advances, unless they are non-refundable, wherein they are 
transferred to Inventories on the launch of project.

  o)  Provisions

    A provision is recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable 
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value 
and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These 
estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
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  p)  Contingent liabilities

    A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed 
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group 
or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability 
that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent 
liability but discloses its existence in the consolidated financial statements.

  q)  Earnings per share

    Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for event of bonus 
issue. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to 
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for 
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

  r)  Cash and cash equivalents

    Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-
term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

  s)  Measurement of EBITDA

    As permitted by the Guidance Note on the Revised Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956, the Group has elected 
to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face 
of the statement of profit and loss. The Group measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/(loss). In its measurement, 
the Group does not include depreciation and amortization expense, finance costs and tax expense.  

Amount in Rupees

As at 
31-Mar-12

As at 
31-Mar-11

3.  Share capital

Authorised shares

150,000,000 (Previous year : 150,000,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each 1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000

1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares

145,832,100 (Previous year : 145,832,100) Equity shares of Rs.10 each  1,458,321,000  1,458,321,000 

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 1,458,321,000 1,458,321,000

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:

31- Mar-12 31- Mar-11
No. of shares Amount in Rupees No. of shares Amount in Rupees

At the beginning of the year  145,832,100  1,458,321,000  70,832,100  708,321,000 
Issued during the year  -  -  75,000,000  750,000,000 
Outstanding at the end of the year 145,832,100 1,458,321,000 145,832,100 1,458,321,000

(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares:

 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled 
to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of 
Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

 During the year ended March 31, 2012, the amount of per share dividend recognized as distributions to equity shareholders 
was Rs.Nil (Previous year : Rs.0.25)
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 In event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, 
after distribution of all prefrential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the 
shareholders.

(c) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, share issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back 
during the period of five years immediately preceeding the reporting date :

31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11
No. of shares No. of shares

Equity shares alloted during the year ended March 31, 2010 as fully paid bonus 
shares by capitalisation of securities premium of Rs.567,020,724 and balance in 
profit and loss account of Rs.61,027,176 in the ratio of nine equity shares for every 
one equity share held

62,804,790 62,804,790

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

31- Mar-12 31- Mar-11

No. of shares % of holding in 
the class No. of shares % of holding in 

the class
Equity shares of  Rs.10 each fully paid       
Nitesh Shetty, Managing Director  42,513,685  29.15  42,308,385  29.01 
Nitesh Industries Private Limited  14,205,386  9.74  12,767,096  8.75 
Nomura India Investment Fund Mother Fund  12,971,738  8.89  12,971,738  8.89 
HSBC Bank (Mauritius) Limited  11,666,062  8.00  11,666,062  8.00 
AMIF I Limited  9,969,312  6.84  10,203,700  7.00 

Note: As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declaration received from 
shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represent both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

 Amount in Rupees
As at 

31-Mar-12
As at 

31-Mar-11

4. Reserves and surplus

Securities premium account

Balance as per the last financial statements  3,125,854,554  139,517,000 

Add : Premium on issue of equity shares (Refer note 41)  -  3,300,000,000 

Less: Share issue expenses (Refer note 41)  -  (313,662,446)

Closing balance  3,125,854,554  3,125,854,554 

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Balance as per last financial statements  44,673,967  (24,433,206)

Profit for the year  3,142,721  109,224,350 

Less: Appropriations

         Proposed equity dividend [amount per share Rs. Nil (Previous year : Rs.0.25)]  -  34,403,230 

         Tax on proposed equity dividend  -  5,713,947 

         Dividend for the preceding year  2,055,767  - 

         Tax on dividend for the preceding year  200,614  - 

         Total appropriations  2,256,381  40,117,177 

Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss  45,560,307  44,673,967 

Total reserves and surplus  3,171,414,861  3,170,528,521 
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Amount in Rupees
Non-current portion Current portion

 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11
5.  Long-term borrowings

Debentures
6,200,000 (Previous year : 6,200,000) secured compulsorily 
convertible debentures of Rs. 100 each  -  620,000,000  620,000,000  - 

Term loans
Indian rupee loan:
        From financial institutions (secured)  126,769,883  2,343,655  594,326  594,472 

 126,769,883  622,343,655  620,594,326  594,472 

Amount disclosed under the head “other current liabilities” 
(note 10)  -  -  (620,594,326)  (594,472)

 126,769,883  622,343,655  -  - 

The above amount includes Secured borrowings  126,769,883  622,343,655  620,594,326  594,472 

The above amounts includes borrowings which have been 
guaranteed by directors

 125,000,000  620,000,000  620,000,000  - 

(a) Nitesh Housing Developers Private Limited (‘NHDPL’) has issued Debentures on September 25, 2009. The buyers has option to 
exercise conversion of such Debentures into preference shares of NHDPL after August 31, 2010 or secure the redemption of 
the same by NHDPL anytime on or after September 5, 2010 and no later than September 20, 2012. The Debentures are secured 
by way of pledge of the entire shareholding of the Company in NHDPL and a part of shareholding of the Managing Director 
of the Company in the Company, equitable mortgage of project specific properties and hypothecation of receivables of such 
projects and further secured by corporate guarantee of the Company and personal guarantee of Managing Director of the 
Company. The Debentures outstanding at the end of the reporting period is Rs.620,000,000 (Previous year : Rs.620,000,000). 
Also, refer note 36.

(b) The Company had taken a loan of Rs.3,154,184  from a financial institution on September 30, 2010 for a period of 60 months. 
The loan is repayable in 60 monthly installments of Rs.65,544 with an interest rate of 9.3% per annum. The loan is secured by 
way of hypothecation of vehicles acquired out of the loan proceeds. The loan balance at the end of the year is Rs.2,364,209 
(Previous year: Rs.2,938,127).

(c) The Company had taken a loan of Rs.125,000,000 (Sanction amount of Rs.150,000,000) from a financial institution on April 
17, 2011 for a period of 60 months.  The loan is repayable in 24 monthly installments beginning 3 years from the date of 
first disbursement at an interest rate based on the Bank’s Prime Lending Rate. The loan is secured by way of mortgage on 
Company’s share of project specific properties and hypothecation of project specific receivables of the Company and further 
secured by personal guarantee of Managing Director of the Company. The loan balance at the end of the year is Rs.125,000,000 
(Previous year: Rs.Nil).

Amount in Rupees

 Long-term  Short-term 
 31-Mar-12  31-Mar-11  31-Mar-12  31-Mar-11 

6. Provisions             
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity  6,701,828  4,159,427  845,645  147,380 
Provision for leave benefits  -  -  16,029,165  9,785,956 

 6,701,828  4,159,427  16,874,810  9,933,336 
Other Provisions
Income tax ( net of advance tax)  -  -  51,773,733  14,930,423 
Proposed equity dividend  -  -  -  34,403,230 
Tax on proposed equity dividend  -  -  -  5,713,947 

 -  -  51,773,733  55,047,600 
Total  6,701,828  4,159,427  68,648,543  64,980,936 
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Amount in Rupees

As at 
31-Mar-12

As at 
31-Mar-11

7. Other long-term liabilities

Security Deposits  21,624,512  - 

Advances received  21,682,059  - 

 43,306,571  - 

8. Short-term borrowings
Indian rupee loan
  - from a bank (secured)  190,100,000  150,000,000 

  - from a financial institution (secured)  305,854,428  14,033,000 

Interest free loans and advances from managing director repayable on demand 
(unsecured)

 100,000  100,000 

Others (unsecured)  3,915,600  4,052,400 

 499,970,028  168,185,400 

The above amount includes Secured borrowings  495,954,428  164,033,000 

The above amounts includes borrowings which have been
guaranteed by directors

 495,954,428  164,033,000 

Notes:
a) The Company had taken a loan of Rs.150,000,000 (Sanction amount of Rs.150,000,000) from a financial institution on December 

15, 2010 for a period of 18 months.  The loan is repayable in 12 monthly installments of  Rs. 2.5 crores beginning from the 12th 
month at an interest rate based on the Bank’s Prime Lending Rate. The loan is secured by way of mortgage on Company’s share 
of project specific properties and hypothecation of receivables of the Company and further secured by personal guarantee 
of Managing Director of the Company. The loan balance at the end of the reporting period is Rs.75,000,000 (Previous year: 
Rs.150,000,000).

b) The Company had taken a loan of Rs.190,100,000 (Sanction amount of Rs.300,000,000) from a bank on May 5, 2011 for a period 
of 36 months. The loan is repayable in 12 monthly installments of Rs. 2.5 crores beginning from the  25th month at an interest 
rate based on the Bank’s Prime Lending Rate. The loan is secured by way of mortgage on Company’s share of project specific 
properties and further secured by personal guarantee of Managing Director of the Company. The loan balance at the end of 
the reporting period is Rs.190,100,000 (Previous year: Rs.Nil).

c) The Company had taken a loan of Rs.150,000,000 (Sanction amount of Rs.350,000,000) from a financial institution on June 
23, 2011 for a period of 30 months. The loan is repayable in 12 monthly installments of Rs. 3 crores beginning from the 19th 
month at an interest rate based on the Corporate Prime Lending Rate. The loan is secured by way of mortgage on Company’s 
share of project specific properties and further secured by personal guarantee of Managing Director of the Company. The 
loan balance at the end of the reporting period is Rs. 150,000,000 (Previous year: Rs.Nil).

d) Nitesh Urban Development Private Limited (‘NUDPL’) had taken a loan of Rs.56,000,000 (Sanction amount of Rs.400,000,000) 
from a Bank on March 26, 2012 for a period of 36 months. The loan is repayable in 12 monthly installments of Rs.3.37 crores 
beginning from the 25th month at an interest rate based on the Bank Prime Lending Rate. The loan is secured by way of 
mortgage on NUDPL’s share of project specific properties and further secured by personal guarantee of Managing Director of 
the Company and the Company. The loan balance at the end of the reporting period is Rs.56,000,000 (Previous year: Rs.Nil).
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e) NHDPL had taken a loan of Rs.24,854,428 (Sanction amount of Rs.25,000,000) from a Bank on March 18, 2011 for a period of 
36 months. The loan is repayable in 17 monthly installments of Rs.0.15 crores beginning from the 19th month at an interest 
rate based on the Bank Prime Lending Rate. The loan is secured by way of mortgage on NHDPL’s share of project specific 
properties and further secured by personal guarantee of Managing Director of the Company. The loan balance at the end of 
the reporting period is Rs.24,854,428 (Previous year: Rs.14,033,000).

Amount in Rupees
As at 

31-Mar-12
As at 

31-Mar-11
9.  Trade payable

Trade payable  508,201,494  360,623,686 
 508,201,494  360,623,686 

Note: 
Based on the information available with the Group, there are no suppliers who are registered as micro small and medium enterprises 
under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

10.  Other current liabilities
Current maturities of long-term borrowings*  620,594,326  594,472 
Advance from Customers  887,372,070  436,466,055 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  4,707,501  - 
Billing in excess of contract revenue  471,111,912  - 
Short term employee benefits payable  4,200,000  - 
Statutory dues payable  121,570,391  30,273,998 

 2,109,556,200  467,334,525 
*Current maturities of long-term borrowings represents amount repayable within the operating cycle. Amount payable within 
twelve months Rs.620,594,326 (Previous year: Rs.594,472).
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 Amount in Rupees

Computer  software Total

12. Intangible assets

Gross block

As at 1 April 2010  4,480,318  4,480,318 

Additions  1,354,910  1,354,910 

As at 31 March 2011  5,835,228  5,835,228 

Additions  36,611,657  36,611,657 

As at 31 March 2012  42,446,885  42,446,885 

Amortization

As at 1 April 2010  1,170,997  1,170,997 

Charge for the year  1,088,213  1,088,213 

As at 31 March 2011  2,259,210  2,259,210 

Charge for the year  7,786,539  7,786,539 

As at 31 March 2012  10,045,749  10,045,749 

Net block

As at 31 March 2011  3,576,018  3,576,018 

As at 31 March 2012  32,401,136  32,401,136 

Amount in Rupees

As at 
31-Mar-12

As at 
31-Mar-11

13. Non-current investments

A. Trade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

Investments in equity instruments (unquoted)

Investment in associate

30,680,579 (Previous year : 29,120,579) Class A equity shares of Rs.10 each fully 
paid up in Nitesh Residency Hotels Private Limited (includes Rs.4,166,079 of 
goodwill arising on acquisition of shares in the associate company)

 605,805,790  410,805,790 

Less: Share in loss of Associate  (17,224,358)  (9,020,474)

 588,581,432  401,785,316 

B. Other Investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

Investment in government and trust securities (unquoted)

National Savings Certificate  57,200  57,200 

 57,200  57,200 

 588,638,632  401,842,516 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  588,638,632  401,842,516 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)
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Amount in Rupees
As at 

31-Mar-12
As at 

31-Mar-11
14. Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax liability
Fixed assets : Impact of differences between tax depreciation and depreciation/
amortization charged for financial reporting  4,235,550  - 

 4,235,550  -
Deferred tax asset
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current 
year but allowed for tax purpose on payment basis  5,588,487  4,681,486 

Fixed assets : Impact of differences between tax depreciation and  
depreciation/amortization charged for the financial reporting  -  16,348 

Effect of tax losses  55,410,233  8,404,000 
Gross deferred tax asset  60,998,720  13,101,834 
Net deferred tax asset  56,763,170  13,101,834 
Note: The management is reasonably confident of realisation of deferred tax assets based on the future taxable income and 
ultimate outcome of ongoing and proposed projects.

 Non-current  Current 
 31-Mar-12  31-Mar-11  31-Mar-12  31-Mar-11 

15. Loans and advances
Capital advances
Unsecured, considered good  856,600,000  1,205,188,332  -  - 

 856,600,000  1,205,188,332  -  - 
Security deposit
Unsecured, considered good  21,683,739  21,052,051  181,164,138  133,482,265 

 21,683,739  21,052,051  181,164,138  133,482,265 

Loan and advances to related parties (Also refer note 30)

Unsecured, considered good  475,000,000  828,236,000  545,243,600  457,113,190 
 475,000,000  828,236,000  545,243,600  457,113,190 

Other loans and advances (unsecured, considered good)

Vendor advances  -  -  513,530,192  349,188,374 
Advance income-tax (net of provision for taxation)  42,653,982  21,513,966  -  - 
Advance against property*  1,693,587,463  843,495,906  142,801,121  148,700,752 
MAT credit entitlement  7,000,000  7,000,000  -  - 
Balances with statutory/government authorities  -  -  118,850,455  56,664,628 
Share application money pending allotment (Refer note 43)  50,000,000  50,000,000  -  - 

 1,793,241,445  922,009,872  775,181,768  554,553,754 
Total  3,146,525,184  2,976,486,255  1,501,589,506  1,145,149,209 
* Advances against property though unsecured, are considered good as the advances have been given based on arrangements/
memorandum of understanding executed by the Company. The Company/ seller/  intermediary is in the course of obtaining clear 
and marketable title, free from all encumbrances, including for certain properties under litigation.

16. Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the 
date they are due for payment  -  -  87,388,622  160,857,857 

Other receivables  -  -  398,764,690  429,758,555 
 -  -  486,153,312  590,616,412 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)



�%�

�������	
���
��������������

 Non-current  Current 
 31-Mar-12  31-Mar-11  31-Mar-12  31-Mar-11 

17. Other assets             
Unbilled revenue  -  -  273,151,623  40,682,168 
Interest accrued  -  -  119,575,041  104,044,664 
Non current bank balances  2,435,817  3,050,000  -  - 

 2,435,817  3,050,000  392,726,664  144,726,832 

As at 
31-Mar-12

As at 
31-Mar-11

18. Current Investments
(valued at lower of cost and fair value)
Investments in mutual funds (unquoted)
Nil (Previous year: 103,842.42) units of Rs.10 each in Baroda Pioneer PSU Bond Fund  -  1,038,605 
Nil (Previous year: 19,843.04) units of Rs.10 each in SBI SHF Short Term Fund  -  198,549 
10,000 (Previous year : 21,679.18) units of Rs.10 each in HDFC Cash Management Fund  100,000  221,639 

 100,000  1,458,793 
Aggregate  amount  of  unquoted  investments  100,000  1,458,793 

 Non-current  Current 
 31-Mar-12  31-Mar-11  31-Mar-12  31-Mar-11 

19. Inventories
(valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Land (Refer note 38)  -  -  333,541,026  219,242,539 
Work in progress  -  -  769,678,569  404,877,664 

 -  -  1,103,219,595  624,120,203 

20. Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
– On current accounts  -  -  173,768,333  56,948,934 
– On deposit accounts with original maturity less than 3 months  -  -  11,800,000  - 
Cash on hand  -  -  8,372,161  8,844,699 

 -  -  193,940,494  65,793,633 
Other bank balances
– Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months  1,310,817  1,050,000  -  - 
– Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months 
but less than 12 months  -  -  8,030,000  1,436,943 

Margin money deposit  1,125,000  2,000,000  -  - 
 2,435,817  3,050,000  201,970,494  67,230,576 

Amount disclosed under non-current assets  (2,435,817)  (3,050,000)  -  - 
 -  -  201,970,494  67,230,576 

Year ended 
31-Mar-12

Year ended 
31-Mar-11

21. Revenue from operations
Income from property development  634,794,043  297,069,500 
Income from sale of developed property (apartment)  -  120,000,000 
Income from sale of villa plots  41,514,000  193,324,800 
Income from contractual activites  601,806,429  630,652,326 

 1,278,114,472  1,241,046,626 
Less: Sales returns: Sale of development rights [also refer note 30(d)]  115,862,027  - 

 1,162,252,445  1,241,046,626 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)
Amount in Rupees
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 Amount in Rupees 
Year ended 
31-Mar-12

Year ended 
31-Mar-11

22. Other Income
Interest income on:
 - Bank deposits  596,948  3,898,289 
 - Others  132,590,779  92,184,304 
Share of profit on sale of Transferable Development Rights (‘TDR’)  -  52,511,301 
Compensation received on cancelation of TDR Contract  -  11,013,869 
Dividend income from current investments in mutual funds units  58,028  38,767,122 
Other non operating income [net of expenses Rs.Nil (Previous year:Rs. Nil)]  2,615,303  1,112,949 

 135,861,058  199,487,834 

23. Cost of material consumed
Inventory at the beginning of the year  -  - 
Add: Purchases  31,005,926  132,037,696 

 31,005,926  132,037,696 
Less: Inventory at the end of the year  -  - 
Cost of material consumed  31,005,926  132,037,696 

24. (Increase)/decrease in inventories
Opening work in progress  624,120,203  279,606,679 
Less: Closing work in progress  1,103,219,595  624,120,203 

 (479,099,392)  (344,513,524)

25. Employee benefit expenses
Salaries,wages and bonus  160,141,582  141,455,364 
Contribution to provident and other funds  2,248,165  1,496,807 
Staff welfare expenses  1,958,037  1,459,927 
Less: Reimbursement of expenses from a related party  -  (4,958,995)

 164,347,784  139,453,103 

26. Other expenses
Power and fuel  4,940,827  4,304,669 
Rent  20,468,998  16,642,147 
Repairs and maintenance - others  8,170,733  9,196,076 
Office maintenance expenses  7,597,309  8,589,823 
Insurance charges  3,735,581  4,653,683 
Rates and taxes [including project approval costs of Rs.Nil  
(Previous year: Rs.18,905,710)]  4,540,645  19,956,356 

Professional and consultancy charges  30,861,239  16,579,001 
Architect and other fees  135,796,790  56,066,473 
Payment to auditor (Refer details below)  3,555,842  2,830,062 
Advertising and sales promotion  125,311,717  122,146,118 
Travelling and conveyance  12,045,764  13,206,461 
Lease rent - vehicles  1,651,793  2,731,516 
Communication expenses  2,311,483  2,180,460 
Printing, postage and stationery  4,282,406  7,564,875 
Recruitment  expenses  -  3,478,998 
Director Sitting fees  820,000  620,000 
Foreign exchange loss (net)  761,170  - 
Donations  -  625,000 
Capital work-in-progress written off  7,790,619  - 
Miscellaneous  expenses  3,736,022  16,934,688 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)
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Year ended 
31-Mar-12

Year ended 
31-Mar-11

Less: Reimbursement of expenses from a related party  -  (1,643,068)
 378,378,938  306,663,338 

Payment to statutory auditor of the Company
As auditor:
 - Audit fee  1,500,000  1,500,000 
 - Fees for limited reviews  1,200,000  1,200,000 
 - Other matters  650,000  - 
Reimbursement of expenses[excluding service tax of Rs.366,252  
(Previous year: Rs.291,496)]  205,842  130,062 

 3,555,842  2,830,062 

27. Depreciation and Amortaisation
Depreciation of tangible assets  10,560,312  5,696,930 
Amortization of intangible assets  7,786,539  1,088,213 

 18,346,851  6,785,143 
Less: Reimbursement of expenses from a related party  -  (185,334)

 18,346,851  6,599,809 

28. Finance costs
Interest and other charges :
 - On loans  69,608,512  56,853,233 
 - Others  895,753  901,233 
Bank charges  1,665,611  1,039,651 

 72,169,876  58,794,117 

29. The details of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate consolidated in these financial statements are as follows:

Particulars Country of 
incorporation

Percentage of 
holding

Subsidiaries
Nitesh Indiranagar Retail Private Limited [‘NIRPL’]
Nitesh Housing Developers Private Limited [‘NHDPL’]
Nitesh Urban Development Private Limited [‘NUDPL’]
Kakanad Enterprises Private Limited (formerly Nitesh Kochi Projects & 
Developers Private Limited) [‘NKPDPL’]
Nitesh Property Management Private Limited[‘NPMPL’]

India
India
India
India 
India 

100.0%
89.9%

100.0%
100.0%
100.0%

Joint venture
Nitesh Estates – Whitefield, a jointly controlled entity 
[Association of persons (‘AOP’)]
Courtyard Construction Private Limited[‘CCPL’]

Associate

Nitesh Residency Hotels Private Limited [‘NRHPL’]

India

India

India

See note below

50.0%

21.1%

Note: The Company has invested a sum of Rs.41,100,723 towards its contribution to the fixed capital in the AOP.  As per the 
terms of the AOP agreement, the Company is entitled to 24% of the net profits of the AOP. Further, the Company is entitled to 
share in net assets in the ratio of capital outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

Amount in Rupees

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)

30. Related party information 
 a)  List of Related parties

Key managerial personnel (‘KMP’) Mr. Nitesh Shetty [Managing Director]
Mr. L.S.Vaidyanathan [Executive Director]

Enterprises owned or significantly 
influenced  by KMP

Globosport India Private Limited
Lob Media Private Limited
Madison Developers Private Limited
Nisco Ventures Private Limited
Nitesh Agrico Private Limited
Nitesh Airways Private Limited
Winter Lands Developers Private Limited
(formerly Nitesh Devanahalli Township Private Limited)
Southern Hills Developers Private Limited
(formerly Nitesh Estates Projects Private Limited)
Nitesh Energy Private Limited
Nitesh Healthcare Private Limited
Nitesh Hospitals Private Limited
Nitesh Industries Private Limited
Nitesh Infrastructure Private Limited
Nitesh Land Holdings Private Limited
Nitesh Media Private Limited
Nitesh Mylapore Developers Private Limited
Nitesh Pharmacy Private Limited
Nitesh Publishers Private Limited
Nitstone Environment Private Limited
Nitstone Waste Management Private Limited
Nitesh Telecom Private Limited
Nitesh Warehousing Private Limited
Serve & Volley Holdings Private Limited
Grass Outdoor Media Private Limited 
Serve & Volley Outdoor Advertising Private Limited
Serve & Volley Signages Private Limited
Hampton Investments Private Limited
Nitesh Healthcare
Richmond Trading Enterprises
Nitesh Infrastructure and Construction

Joint venture enterprise (AOP) Nitesh Estates – Whitefield  (See note below)

Joint venturers of joint venture 
enterprise (AOP)

Mr. Joji Reddy
Mr. Showrie Reddy

Joint venture Company Courtyard Construction Private Limited

Joint venturers of Joint venture 
Company.

D. N. Budhrani
H. N. Budhrani

Associate Company Nitesh Residency Hotel Private Limited 

Note:  The disclosures below pertain to the share of the other joint venturers in Nitesh Estates – Whitefield and Courtyard 
Construction Private Limited. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)

b) Transactions with Related parties Amount in Rupees                                 

Year ended
31-Mar-2012

Year ended
31-Mar-2011

Income from contractual activities
Nitesh Residency Hotels Private Limited 318,756,077 301,741,110

Nitesh Estates – Whitefield 182,042,644 236,559,941

Nitesh Infrastructure and Constructions 12,139,295 4,000,000

Mr. L. S. Vaidyanathan 6,960,229 -

Mr. Nitesh Shetty 834,571 660,646

Total 520,732,816 542,961,697

Sales returns - Sale of development rights 
Southern Hills Developers Private Limited (refer note d below) 115,862,027 -

Total 115,862,027 -

Sub-contracting charges 
Nisco Ventures Private Limited - 29,298,930

Total - 29,298,930

Purchase of developed property (apartment)
Southern Hills Developers Private Limited (refer note a below) - 28,400,000

Total - 28,400,000

Rent and other charges paid 
Nitesh Infrastructure and Construction 18,774,716 24,718,374

Total 18,774,716 24,718,374

Interest income
Southern Hills Developers Private Limited  - 24,691,461

Winter Land Developers Private Limited  132,590,779 67,344,012

Total 132,590,779 92,035,473

Advertising and sales promotion expenses
Grass Outdoor Media Private Limited - 8,138,190

Serve & Volley Outdoor Advertising Private Limited 18,545,462 8,792,288

Total 18,545,462 16,930,478

Reimbursement of expenses received
Southern Hills Developers Private Limited (refer note b below) - 7,750,203

Total - 7,750,203

Remuneration to KMP
Mr. Nitesh Shetty 12,293,720 12,293,720

Mr. L.S.Vaidyanathan 11,700,000 7,209,360

Total 23,993,720 19,503,080
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)

b) Transactions with Related parties (contd.)  Amount in Rupees

Year ended
31-Mar-2012

Year ended
31-Mar-2011

Investments made
Nitesh Residency Hotels Private Limited (refer note c below) 195,000,000 130,000,000

Total 195,000,000 130,000,000

Security Deposits given/(refunded)
Nitesh Infrastructure and Construction - 8,652,600

Total - 8,652,600

Short term borrowings repaid
Mr. Nitesh Shetty - 25,865,000

Total - 25,865,000

Share issue expenses
Grass Outdoor Media Private Limited - 19,023,807

Serve & Volley Outdoor Advertising Private Limited - 21,100,390

Total - 40,124,197

Assignment of real estate projects received
Southern Hills Developers Private Limited - 57,974,609

Total - 57,974,609

Loans and Advances given/(repaid)
Nitesh Estates – Whitefield - 46,225,405

Southern Hills Developers Private Limited 19,173,000 73,014,177

Madison Developers Private Limited (228,000,000) (2,500,000)

Richmond Trading Enterprises - 5,839,785

Richmond Trading Enterprises (38,700,000) (5,935,078)

Mr. Joji Reddy 27,678,933 29,810,892

Mr. Showrie Reddy - 24,390,729

Nitesh Mylapore Developers Private Limited - 81,018,943

Winter Land Developers Private Limited  (22,000,000) 703,531,000

Nitesh Estates – Whitefield (36,121,359) (27,415,712)

Southern Hills Developers Private Limited (239,094,175) (28,487,256)

Note:  The Group has obtained refund of the advances with/ without interest, as per commercial arrangement with the related 
parties.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)

c) Balances outstanding with Related parties Amount in Rupees
As at

31-Mar-2012
As at

31-Mar-2011
Trade receivables
Nitesh Infrastructure and Constructions 5,030,000 5,030,000
Nitesh Estates – Whitefield 94,016,087 206,378,294
Nitesh Residency Hotels Private Limited 79,757,194 13,789,413
Mr. Nitesh Shetty - 444,706
Total 178,803,281 225,642,413

Short term borrowings
Mr. Nitesh Shetty 100,000 100,000
Total 100,000 100,000

Interest receivable
Southern Hills Developers Private Limited  - 24,691,461
Winter Land Developers Private Limited  119,251,795 78,760,387
Total 119,251,795 103,451,848

Loans and advances
Nitesh Estates –Whitefield - 35,510,132
Madison Developers Private Limited - 228,000,000
Southern Hills Developers Private Limited 62,210,740 299,025,803
Richmond Trading Enterprises - 69,446,131
Nitesh Mylapore Developers Private Limited - 81,018,943
Winter Land Developers Private Limited  806,236,000 828,236,000
Nitesh Infrastructure and Construction - 1,559,161
Nisco Ventures Private Limited - 50,141,839
Mr. Nitesh Shetty - 7,429,400
Mr. L.S.Vaidyanathan - 1,350,800
Mr. Joji Reddy 80,786,670 56,580,523
Mr. Showrie Reddy 46,293,155 46,293,155
Courtyard Constructions Private Limited 12,500,000 -
Total 1,008,026,565 1,704,591,887

Security deposits
Nitesh Infrastructure and Construction 17,690,475 17,690,475
Total 17,690,475 17,690,475

Advance against property
Nisco Ventures Private Limited 40,762,955 40,762,955
Total 40,762,955 40,762,955

Trade payables
Nisco Ventures Private Limited 1,290,927 1,410,566
Nitesh Infrastructure and Construction 1,450,072 1,942,346
Grass Outdoor Media Private Limited 2,765,040 2,765,040
Serve & Volley Outdoor Advertising Private Limited 2,639,539 1,317,522
Southern Hills Developers Private Limited - 24,555
Total 8,145,578 7,460,029
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)

c) Balances outstanding with Related parties (Contd.) Amount in Rupees

As at
31-Mar-2012

As at
31-Mar-2011

Advance from customers
Nitesh Residency Hotels Private Limited 40,000,000 59,275,187
Total 40,000,000 59,275,187

Other current liabilities
Nitesh Estates – Whitefield - 346,627
Total - 346,627

Notes: 

a. On June 1, 2010, the Company purchased a developed property (apartment) from Southern Hills Developers Private Limited 
(‘SHDPL’) for a consideration of Rs.28,400,000 and sold the same to a third party for a consideration of Rs.60,000,000 on June 
15, 2010. The Company incurred other incidental costs of Rs.2,062,885 towards purchase of the said apartment.

b. Pursuant to the Share Subscription Agreement (‘SSA’) entered into between AMIF I Limited (‘Investors’), Pushpalatha V. Shetty, 
Nitesh Shetty, Nitesh Industries Private Limited and the Company, common costs i.e. the salaries, general and administrative 
and selling overheads incurred by the Company are being shared by SHDPL and the Company in the ratio of their project 
expenses. 

 Accordingly, the Company has crossed charged SHDPL expenses amounting to Rs. Nil (Previous year: Rs. 6,787,397). Although, 
the SSA has been terminated effective October 9, 2009, the Company and SHDPL continued to share common costs in the 
ratio of their project expenses up to June 30, 2010.

c. The Company has invested a sum of Rs.605,805,790 (Previous year: Rs.410,805,790) towards 30,680,579 (Previous year: 
29,120,579) Class A equity shares of Nitesh Residency Hotels Private Limited (‘NRHPL’). The aforesaid investment has certain 
transfer restrictions (including consent of another investor) under the Shareholders’ Agreement entered into with the other 
investors in NRHPL. As part of the loan arrangement entered into by NRHPL for funding the hotel project, the Company 
has provided an undertaking to such lenders not to divest its shares in NRHPL. The aforesaid Class A shares have similar 
voting rights to the Class B shares held by another investor but have different dividend rights in terms of the shareholders 
agreement. Effective October 30, 2009, NRHPL became an associate of the Company. The Company has a commitment to 
invest additional share capital in NRHPL along with the other investors. The Company’s share of such additional investment 
as at March 31, 2012 is estimated to be Rs.135,000,000 (Previous year: Rs.330,000,000).

d. During the year ended March 31, 2009, the Company sold 25% of its development rights under a joint venture to Southern 
Hills Developers Private Limited (formerly Nitesh Estates Projects Private Limited), a company owned by key managerial 
personnel (‘SHDPL’) for a consideration of Rs.270,000,000. The Company had incurred cost of Rs.115,862,027 towards land 
and other development costs as at the date of sale and had accordingly recognized a profit of Rs.154,137,973. 

 During the year, the Company has bought back the aforesaid development rights from SHDPL for a consideration of 
Rs.115,862,027 and the same has been recorded as sales return. Accordingly, revenue from operations for the year is lower 
by Rs.115,862,027 with the corresponding impact on (increase) /decrease in inventories. The management is of the view that 
the aforesaid transaction is based on the contract entered by the parties, having no impact on the profit for the year ended 
March 31, 2012.

e. The Company has paid remuneration to key managerial personnel, for which an application has been made to the Central 
Government for its approval. Management is reasonably confident of obtaining the approval.

f. Pursuant to a retrospective amendment to the billing arrangement between the Company and Nitesh Estates –Whitefield on 
March 31, 2012, the Company has recognized revenue of Rs.14,922,575 relating to period prior to April 1, 2011.

g. Refer note 5 and 7 for loans personally guaranteed by certain directors of the Company.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)

31. Contingent liabilities not provided for

i. Contingent liability 

                                Amount in Rupees

Particulars
As at 31-March-12 As at 31-March-11

NEL and
its subsidiaries Joint Venture NEL and

its subsidiaries Joint Venture

Claims not acknowledged as debts 
in respect of income tax

35,416,412 - 30,275,706 - 

Claims not acknowledged as debts 
in respect of service tax

394,966 - - -

Guarantees given 31,175,000 - 14,075,000 -

 Also, refer note 39 and note 43 below.

ii. Commitments

 i. The estimated amount of contracts, net of advances remaining to be executed on capital account is Rs. 327,464,428 
(Previous year: Rs.291,790,000).

  ii. As at March 31, 2012, the Group has given Rs.2,017,552,722 (Previous year:Rs.1,125,678,923) as advances/deposits for 
joint development/purchase of land. Under the arrangements executed with the land owners/intermediary parties, 
the Group is required to make further payments under the arrangements based on the terms/ milestones stipulated 
thereunder. Further, in respect of joint development arrangements the Group is also required to give share in area/
revenue from such development in exchange of undivided share in land as stipulated under the arrangements.

iii.  Also, refer note 30(c) and 43 below.

32. Details of Construction contracts in progress

 Amount in Rupees

 Particulars
As at 

31-March -12
As at 

31-March -11

Contract revenue recognized as revenue for the year 1,241,031,776 994,356,377

Aggregate amount of contract costs incurred and recognized profits (less 
recognized losses) up to the balance sheet date for all the contracts in 
progress

3,445,104,737 2,204,072,961

The amount of customer advances outstanding for contracts in progress as 
at the balance sheet date

887,372,070 436,466,055

The amount of retentions due from customers for contracts in progress as at 
the balance sheet date

15,020,632 3,986,343

33. Segment reporting

The Group is engaged in the business of real estate development in India. Since, the Group’s business activity primarily falls 
within a single business and geographical segment, no further disclosures are required, other than those already given in the 
financial statements.

34. Employee benefits 

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets gratuity 
on departure at 15 days basic salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service subject to maximum of Rs.1,000,000. 
The scheme is unfunded and hence the disclosures with respect to plan assets as per AS-15(R) are not applicable to the 
Company.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and 
the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for gratuity benefit.

                                                                             Amount in Rupees
Net employee benefit expense 
(recognised in Employee Cost)

Year ended 
31-Mar-12

Year ended 
31-Mar-11

Current service cost 5,354,752 1,430,889
Interest cost on benefit obligation 797,993 357,790
Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognized (2,956,418) (147,463)
Past service cost 157,615 157,614
Net benefit expense 3,353,942 1,798,830

                                                                                                                             Amount in Rupees

Details of provision for gratuity As at
31-Mar-12

As at
31-Mar-11

Defined benefit obligation 7,705,088 4,622,036
Less: Unrecognised past service cost (157,615) (315,229)
Plan liability 7,547,473 4,306,807

 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
                                                                                                                                                    Amount in Rupees

As at
31-Mar-12

As at
31-Mar-11

Opening defined benefit obligation 4,622,036 2,980,820
Interest cost 797,993 357,790
Current service cost 5,354,752 1,430,889
Benefits paid (113,275) -
Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligation (2,956,418) (147,463)
Closing defined benefit obligation 7,705,088 4,622,036

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligations are given below:

As at
31-Mar-12

As at
31-Mar-11

Discount rate 8.55% 8.05%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and 
other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Amounts for the current and preceding years are as follows:
                 Amount in Rupees
As at

31-Mar-12
As at

31-Mar-11
Defined benefit obligation 7,705,088 4,622,036
Plan assets - -
Surplus / (Deficit) (7,705,088) (4,622,036)
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities (2,967,790) (197,656)

35. Leases
The Group has taken office, vehicles and other facilities under cancelable and non-cancelable operating leases, which 
are renewable on a periodic basis. The total lease expense for such leases recognised in the statement of profit and loss is 
Rs.22,120,791(Previous year :Rs.19,373,663). The future minimum lease payments for non-cancelable operating leases are as 
follows:



�)�

�������	
���
��������������

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)

                     Amount in Rupees

Particulars As at
31-Mar-12

As at
31-Mar-11

Not later than one year - 570,000
More than one year and less than five years - 440,000
Total - 1,010,000

36. On September 24, 2009, NEL invested a sum of Rs.49,999,000 in the equity shares (99.9%) of Nitesh Housing Developers 
Private Limited (‘NHDPL’), a subsidiary of NEL. Subsequently, on September 25, 2009, NEL sold 10.1% of its investment in 
NHDPL to another party (‘the Buyer’). As at March 31, 2012, NEL holds 89.9% of the equity share capital of NHDPL.

On September 25, 2009, NEL, NHDPL, the Buyer and Mr. Nitesh Shetty have entered into an agreement whereby NHDPL would 
issue and allot to the Buyer, 6,200,000 Debentures of Rs.100 each aggregating to Rs.620,000,000. The Debentures and interest 
thereon are secured by way of pledge of the entire shareholding of NEL in NHDPL and a part of shareholding of Mr. Nitesh 
Shetty in NEL, equitable mortgage of project specific properties and hypothecation of receivables of such projects and further 
secured by corporate guarantee of NEL and personal guarantee of Mr. Nitesh Shetty. Further, the Buyer has a put option to 
require Mr. Nitesh Shetty to buy the 505,000 shares purchased from NEL under the terms of the agreement. The Buyer has 
the option to exercise conversion of such Debentures into preference shares of NHDPL after August 31, 2010 or secure the 
redemption of the same by NHDPL anytime on or after September 5, 2010 and no later than September 20, 2012. 

Further, NHDPL had the option to redeem the Debentures to the extent of Rs.500,000,000 on or before March 31, 2011, which 
has not been exercised by NHDPL. NHDPL had the obligation to redeem all the Debentures on September 20, 2012. The 
Debentures are redeemable at a price that shall entitle the Buyer to a pre-tax IRR of 18% p.a. on the subscribed amount if on 
such date of redemption NEL has not completed its initial public offering (‘IPO’), or a post-tax IRR of 25% p.a., if on the date of 
redemption NEL has completed its IPO. NHDPL has issued Debentures amounting to Rs.620,000,000 as at March 31, 2012.

On May 15, 2010, certain terms of Debenture agreement have been amended and the Debentures have been converted from 
‘Redeemable Optionally Convertible Debentures’ to ‘Compulsorily Convertible Debentures’, which will be later converted to 
‘Redeemable Non-convertible Preference Shares’ anytime on or after September 5, 2010 and no later than September 20, 
2012. Such Redeemable Non-convertible Preference Shares are to be redeemed at an IRR to the Buyer as discussed above. 
As per the aforesaid terms, the debentures are convertible at par into preference shares and the premium on redemption of 
preference shares thereon in the opinion of the management, will be out of utilization of securities premium arising from fresh 
issue of equity shares to existing shareholders of NHDPL.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)

37. Details of amounts included in the consolidated financial statements for the Groups’ proportionate share of the assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses (before eliminations) of the joint venture are as follows:

Amount in Rupees

Particulars 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11

Reserves and surplus

Non-current liabilities 
   Other long term liabilities 

Current liabilities 
   Short-term borrowings
   Trade Payables 
   Other current liabilities
   Short-term provisions 

 Non-current assets
    Long-term loans and advances

Current assets
   Inventories
   Trade receivables
   Cash and bank balances
   Short-term loans and advances
   

995,859

31,682,059 

3,915,600 
 45,538,167 
 63,207,787 

 1,644,552

29,276,560

62,551,367 
 19,127,479 
  10,255,572

 129,338,294

1,007,158

-

4,052,400
123,462,458 
169,500,344

-

-

38,640,566
167,366,286

10,958,729
176,493,192

 Income
   Revenue from operations
   Other income

 Expenses
   Sub-contracting charges
   Other expenses
   Finance costs
   Current Tax

54,267,744
49,328

42,799,141
842,768
364,102

1,209,600

107,321,537
-

88,911,690
838,367

-
-

38. Inventories as at March 31, 2012 includes Land amounting to Rs.307,388,948 (Previous year: Rs.193,090,461) comprising 
cost of land held by the Company and other related costs incurred thereto. The land is to be developed under a joint 
arrangement with another party (‘the Other Party’) along with the adjoining parcel of land owned by the Other Party. As per 
the joint arrangement, the Company was required to commence the project by May 18, 2010, failing which the Other Party is 
entitled to terminate the joint arrangement. The Other Party has not exercised the right to terminate and the Company is in 
negotiation with the Other Party on various matters relating to structuring the arrangement, including revised timelines for 
commencement of the project. The Company is reasonably confident of finalizing the arrangement with the Other Party.

39. Advance against property as at March 31, 2012 includes Rs.215,000,000 (Previous year: Rs.215,000,000) paid to an intermediary 
party for purchase of land and consequently, the intermediary party entered into an agreement with the landlord for 
purchase of land. Subsequently, at the request of the Company, the intermediary party assigned its rights and obligations 
under the agreement with the landlord to the Company.  There is no specific confirmation from the landlord in acceptance 
of the aforesaid assignment. The Company continues to deal with the intermediary party on another project. Further, based 
on the advice of the Company’s external legal counsel, the Company is reasonably confident of the enforceability of the 
assignment agreement and has accordingly initiated the legal proceedings with respect to refund of the aforesaid amount 
and is reasonably confident that the legal proceedings would be in favour of the Company. Accordingly, the management is 
of the view that no adjustment is required to be made in respect of the carrying value of the advance against property as at 
March 31, 2012.
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40. As at March 31, 2012, advances have been given by the component entities of the Group to companies owned/significantly 
influenced by key managerial personnel amounting to Rs.828,236,000, towards real estate projects, which are in various stages 
of development/project set-up. The management is confident of settlement of such advances or achievement of profitable 
operations of such real estate projects in future. Accordingly, management is of the view that no adjustments are required to 
be made to the financial statements for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2012.

41. Initial Public Offer
During the year, the Company launched its Initial Public Offer (‘IPO’) of 75,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each for cash at a 
price of Rs.54 each and raised capital of Rs.4,050,000,000. The premium of Rs.44 per share, amounting to Rs.3,300,000,000 
from the allotment has been credited to Securities Premium Account. The Share issue expenses incurred by the Company 
amounting to Rs.313,662,446 have been adjusted against Securities Premium Account. The details of utilization of proceeds 
raised through IPO are as below.

Amount in Rupees

Particulars Objects as per Prospectus Actual Utilisation

Investment in subsidiaries/associate company 3,034,380,000     2,131,692,135 

Repayment of specified loans 356,900,000        356,900,000 

Repayment of other loans -        551,616,355 

Acquisition of specified joint development rights 210,000,000          30,000,000 

Acquisition of other joint development rights -        282,712,865 

Issue related expenditure 272,830,000        313,662,446 

General corporate purposes 175,890,000        383,416,199 

Total 4,050,000,000 4,050,000,000

Note: Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting held on September 29, 2010, the Company 
obtained the approval/ ratification from the members for deviations in the utilization of the IPO proceeds and delegated the 
powers to the Board of Directors of the Company to utilize any part of the net proceeds for a purpose or purposes other than 
those described in the Prospectus of the Company.

42. As at March 31, 2012, Capital work in progress  includes a non-refundable deposit of Rs.855,000,000 (Previous year: 
Rs.855,000,000) paid to the landowner under a Joint Development Agreement (‘JDA’) and other project specific payments 
amounting to Rs.307,982,644 (Previous year: Rs.629,604,666) made by Nitesh Indiranagar Retail Private Limited (‘NIRPL’) 
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. As per the aforesaid JDA, NIRPL is required to adhere to all the terms of the 
JDA (as amended) including the specified project timelines, failing which the other party is entitled to forfeit the aforesaid 
nonrefundable deposit and not continue with the joint development arrangement. Management is reasonably confident of 
NIRPL adhering to all the terms of the aforesaid JDA including the specified project timelines.

43. The Company has entered into share subscription and shareholders agreement dated October 21, 2007 with Sagar Nitesh 
Projects Private Limited (‘SNPPL’) and its promoters. Pursuant to the agreement, the Company had made an initial payment 
of Rs.50,000,000, towards the Company’s obligation to subscribe upto 20% of the paid up capital of SNPPL amounting to 
Rs.354,125,000 upon fulfillment of certain conditions by the parties to the agreement. The Company, in consultation 
with its legal counsel is of the opinion that there has been a breach in fulfillment of the aforesaid conditions on the part 
of the promoters of SNPPL and accordingly, the Company has initiated arbitration proceedings with respect to refund of 
share application money. Based on the advice of the Company’s external legal counsel, the Company is confident that the 
arbitration proceedings would be in the favour of the Company and the realisable value will be atleast equal to its carrying 
value. Accordingly, the management is of the view that no provision is required to be made in respect of the carrying value of 
the aforesaid share application money as at March 31, 2012.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)
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44. Previous year figures
Till the year ended March 31, 2011, the Group was using pre-revised Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956, for preparation 
and presentation of its financial statements. During the year ended March 31, 2012, the revised Schedule VI notified under the 
Companies Act ,1956, has become applicable to the Company. The Group has reclassified previous year figures to conform to 
this year’s classification.   

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Contd.)
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